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1. Half year reporting periods 

Reporting period:  six months to 31 December 2014 

Previous reporting period: six months to 31 December 2013 

 

2. Results for announcement to the market 

 Six months to
31 December 2014

(NZ$m)

Percentage change

Operational results  

Revenue from ordinary activities 1,333.5 +21.5%

Profit from ordinary activities after tax 
attributable to security holders 

                           117.1 +0.2%

Net profit attributable to security 
holders 

117.1 +0.2%

Energy Margin1 480.2 +7.5%

EBITDAF2 324.3 +20.9%

Underlying Net Profit after Tax3 114.8 +38.3%

 
1 Energy Margin is a non-GAAP measure representing Energy Sales Revenue less Energy 
Related Expenses and Energy Distribution Expenses. 
2 EBITDAF is a non-GAAP financial measure, defined as earnings before interest, 
taxation, depreciation, amortisation, changes in fair value of financial instruments, 
gain/(loss) on sale of assets and joint venture equity accounting earnings 
3 Underlying Net Profit after Tax is a non-GAAP measure representing Net Profit after Tax 
adjusted for the effects of non cash fair value movements and other one-off items.  
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 Six months to
31 December 

2014
(NZ$m)

Six months to
31 December 

2013
(NZ$m)

Underlying NPAT Reconciliation 

Net Profit after Tax 117.1 116.9

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments (Operating) 

-0.3 -1.7

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments (Financing) 

25.8 -39.5

Premiums Paid on Electricity Options (less 
interest)  

-8.3 -8.3

Net (Gain)/Loss on Sale of Assets -15.2 2.4

Impairment of Assets 0.5 -

Adjustments before Tax  2.5 -47.1

Net Income Tax on Adjustments -4.8 13.2

Adjustments after Tax -2.3 -33.9

Underlying Net Profit after Tax  114.8 83.0

 

 Amount per 
security

(NZ cents)

Imputed amount
per security

(NZ cents)
Dividends 

Interim ordinary dividend 4.8000 1.8700

Record Date 31 March 2015

Payment Date 15 April 2015  

Special dividend 1.4000 0.5400

Record Date 31 March 2015  

Payment Date 15 April 2015  

For commentary on the operational results please refer to the media announcement and 
interim results presentation. Appendix 1 should be read in conjunction with the attached 
Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the six months 31 December 2014. 
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3. Net tangible assets per security 

 31 December 2014
 (NZ cents)

31 December 2013
 (NZ cents)

Net tangible asset per security, after 
deferred tax 

168 175

  

4. Control of entities gained or lost during the period 

 

Name of Entity Sold / 
dissolved 

Principal Activity Interest held by 
Group 

Whisper Tech (UK) Limited 11/09/14 Non-trading  - 

Meridian Energy USA 
Incorporated 

08/10/14 Development - 

ARC Innovations Limited 01/12/14 Metering  - 

 

5. Dividends 

As per point 2 and NZX Appendix 7 attached 

 

6. Dividend or distribution reinvestment plans 

Nil 

 

7. Associates and joint venture entities 

 

Name of Entity Country of 
Incorporation 

Date Principal Activity Interest held 
by Group 

EDDI Project JV New Zealand 01/05/12 Dam Management 
Systems 

50% 

Hunter Downs 
Development Company 

New Zealand 01/07/13 Irrigation Development 68% 

 

8. Accounting standards 

The group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the New Zealand 
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equivalent to International Accounting Standard 34: Interim Financial Reporting (NZ IAS 34) and 
include condensed notes to the group financial statements. The group financial statements also 
comply with International Accounting Standard IAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting (IAS 34). 

 

9. Audit 

This report is based on the unaudited interim group financial statements. Deloitte has provided a 
review report on the financial statements, which is attached. 
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Company  
overview  
and highlights 

Meridian Energy is New Zealand’s largest 
electricity generator and is committed 
to generating electricity from 100% 
renewable resources – wind and water.

Mer id ia n generates approx i mately 3 0% of 

New Zea la nd’s elect r icit y f rom it s i nteg rated 

cha i n of da m s a nd p ower stat ion s on t he 

Wa ita k i R iver a nd Ma nap ōu r i p ower stat ion 

i n S out h la nd , t he la rgest hyd ro p ower stat ion 

i n New Zea la nd , a nd f rom f ive w i nd fa r m s 

a rou nd t he cou nt r y.

T h rou g h t he Mer id ia n a nd Powershop 

bra nd s , Mer id ia n reta i l s elect r icit y to 

more t ha n 2 7 3 ,0 0 0 cu stomer con nect ion s , 

i nclud i n g homes , fa r m s a nd bu si nesses 

t h rou g hout New Zea la nd . Powershop ha s 

3 0, 80 0 resident ia l a nd com mercia l cu stomer 

con nect ion s i n Victor ia , Au st ra l ia . O u r fo cu s 

i s on cont i nu i n g to achieve high levels of 

service and delivering va lue to ou r cu stomers .

Mer id ia n ow n s a nd op erates Mt M i l la r w i nd 

fa r m i n S out h Au st ra l ia a nd Mt Mercer w i nd 

fa r m i n Victor ia .

Meridian supports a number of environmental 

prog ra m mes , op erates Com mu n it y F u nd s 

a sso ciated w it h each of it s a sset s a nd r u n s 

a nat iona l sp on sorsh ip prog ra m me t hat 

supp or t s orga n i s at ion s t hat ma ke a bi g 

d i f ference to K iw i s , such a s K id sC a n ,  

L iv i n g L egend s a nd S out h I sla nd Row i n g .

T he Mer id ia n Group employs approx i mately 

7 70 f u l l-t i me - equ iva lent employees a nd ha s 

of f ices across New Zea la nd , i nclud i n g t he 

compa ny ’s head of f ice i n Wel l i n g ton a nd  

a n of f ice i n Melb ou r ne.

Wind

Total installed capacity

617MW 1

4.8 
Interim ordinary dividend

CENTS  
PER SHARE

Total installed capacity

2,338MW1

Hydro

1	 Megawatts. One MW is enough to light 10,000 x 100-watt light bulbs.

1.4 
Additional special dividend

CENTS  
PER SHARE
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reg u lator y stabi l it y fol low i n g t he elect ion 

a nd t he cont i nued low i nter nat iona l i nterest 

rate env i ron ment a nd resu lta nt pu rsu it of 

y ield have b een si g n i f ica nt cont r ibutors .

I n sta l ment receipt holders w i l l b e awa re  

t hat t he second i n sta l ment (5 0 cent s) i s due 

for pay ment on or b efore 1 5 May t h i s yea r. 

T h i s i s a pay ment to t he C row n , not Mer id ia n . 

However, Mer id ia n i s work i n g w it h t he C row n 

to i mplement a sea m less pro cess to ma na ge 

t hese cha n ges . Holders shou ld ex p ect to 

receive i n it ia l com mu n icat ion s i n ea rly  

Apr i l 2 01 5 .

Capital management

I n Au g u st la st yea r we a n nou nced t hat t he 

B oa rd wou ld rev iew t he capita l st r uct u re 

of t he compa ny, g iven it s con ser vat ive 

gea r i n g rat ios . O ver t he p er io d Mer id ia n ha s 

cont i nued to p er for m wel l f i na ncia l ly, t he 

r i sk of wholes a le cha n ge to t he elect r icit y 

ma rket st r uct u re i n t he i m med iate f ut u re 

ha s receded a nd t here a re l i m ited at t ract ive 

g row t h opp or t u n it ies t hat wou ld requ i re 

si g n i f ica nt capita l i n t he foreseeable f ut u re. 

I n t hese ci rcu m sta nces , t he B oa rd b el ieves  

it i s appropr iate to si g na l a n i ntent ion to 

Tota l generat ion for t he si x mont h s wa s up 

by over 6% on t he prev iou s cor resp ond i n g 

p er io d , ref lect i n g st ron g f i rst qua r ter hyd ro 

generation in New Zealand and the contribution 

made by t he completed Mt Mercer ( Victor ia ) 

a nd M i l l C reek ( Wel l i n g ton ) w i nd fa r m s .  

T h i s , toget her w it h st ron g i r r i gat ion dema nd 

a nd favou rable bu si ness s a les compa red  

w it h la st yea r, s aw Mer id ia n’s tota l E nerg y 

Ma rg i n i ncrea se by 7. 5% .

A t i g ht rei n wa s kept on op erat i n g cost s a nd 

t hese were dow n 10. 1% on t he s a me p er io d 

la st yea r a nd w it h t he back i n g out of l i st i n g 

cost s f rom la st yea r, t h i s p er io d’s ex p en ses 

were 3 .7% lower.

T h i s a l l f lowed t h rou g h to st ron g op erat i n g 

ca sh f lows t hat were 1 3 . 2 % a head of la st yea r.

Dividend

We a re plea sed to a n nou nce a d iv idend of  

4 . 8 cent s p er sha re, wh ich i s i mputed to 10 0% . 

T h i s i s i n excess of t he foreca st prov ided i n 

t he prosp ect u s .

I n add it ion , t he B oa rd ha s ta ken t he 

opp or t u n it y to decla re a sp ecia l d iv idend 

of 1 .4 cent s p er sha re. T he rea son for t h i s i s 

t hat t he rema i n i n g i mputat ion cred it s held 

by t he compa ny wou ld ot her w i se b e lost i n 

May t h i s yea r, when t he f i na l pay ment u nder 

t he i n sta l ment receipt st r uct u re i s made a nd 

t he C row n t ra n sfers t he u nderly i n g sha res to 

sha reholders . T h i s sp ecia l d iv idend , wh ich 

w i l l a l so b e 10 0% i mputed , w i l l en su re t hat a l l 

of t he rema i n i n g i mputat ion cred it s a re u sed 

b efore t he cha n ge i n ow nersh ip t r i g gers t he 

loss of t hose cred it s .

A s pa r t of t he B oa rd’s con siderat ion of capita l 

ma na gement , it ha s cha n ged t he compa ny ’s 

d iv idend p ol icy to a h i g her p ercenta ge of f ree 

ca sh f low, wh ich i s d i scu ssed i n t he fol low i n g 

sect ion relat i n g to capita l ma na gement .

Instalment receipts

We a re plea sed t hat t he i n sta l ment receipt s 

have cont i nued to p er for m wel l , w it h a n 

i ncrea se of 76% f rom l i st i n g t h rou g h to  

31 D ecemb er 2 014 . I n t he 2 014 ca lenda r yea r 

t he compa ny wa s second on t he N Z X 5 0  

i n ter m s of sha re pr ice appreciat ion but 

f i rst on t he ba si s of tota l sha reholder 

ret u r n (wh ich i ncludes d iv idend s). W h i le 

t he compa ny ’s p er for ma nce ha s played a 

pa r t i n t h i s i ncrea se, t here i s no doubt t hat 

Report
From our Chair and Chief Executive

Meridian continued to perform well, with the New Zealand market 
showing some small signs of overall growth. All key measures of financial 
performance were ahead of the same period last year: EBITDAF was 
ahead by 20.9% and Underlying NPAT by 38.3%.
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ret u r n capita l to sha reholders , prov ided t he 

T iwa i Poi nt smelter ow ners do not ter m i nate 

t hei r elect r icit y a g reement . T he f i rst step t he 

B oa rd ha s ta ken i s to a mend t he compa ny ’s 

d iv idend p ol icy by i ncrea si n g t he p ercenta ge 

of f ree ca sh f low pa id out (a s def i ned i n t he 

p ol icy) on avera ge f rom 70% - 80% to 7 5% -9 0% . 

A l l ot her element s of t he d iv idend p ol icy 

rema i n u ncha n ged . F u r t her more, t he B oa rd 

i ntend s to ret u r n a n add it iona l $62 5m to 

sha reholders over t he nex t f ive yea rs .

T he B oa rd w i l l rema i n f lex ible a s to how 

capita l i s ret u r ned but at t h i s p oi nt it i s 

env i s a ged t hat t h i s w i l l b e by eit her a n 

a n nua l on-ma rket sha re buyback prog ra m me, 

sp ecia l d iv idend s , or a combi nat ion of b ot h .

T he B oa rd i ntend s to adv i se sha reholders  

of t he prog ra m me for t he 2 016 f i na ncia l  

yea r at t he f u l l yea r resu lt s a n nou ncement  

i n Au g u st . At t hat p oi nt t he deci sion of  

New Zea la nd A lu m i n iu m Smelters ( N Z A S) 

rega rd i n g t he T iwa i Poi nt elect r icit y 

a g reement w i l l b e k now n , a nd clea rly, i f t he 

deci sion i s to ter m i nate, or t here ha s b een  

a mater ia l adverse cha n ge to t he compa ny ’s 

f i na ncia l p osit ion or a ny ot her releva nt i ssue 

ha s a r i sen , t he B oa rd w i l l rev i sit it s deci sion 

to pro ceed w it h a l l or pa r t of t he pla n ned 

capita l d i st r ibut ion .

Delivering on our strategy

The M ill Creek and Mt Mercer wind farm 

projects were completed during the last six 

months. I n agg regate they were delivered with 

exemplary health and safety performance 

and 4% under their orig inal budgets. 

I n l i ne w it h ou r stated a i m of i mprov i n g t he 

core bu si ness , Mer id ia n’s meter i n g bu si ness 

wa s sold i n D ecemb er 2 014 to a subsid ia r y 

of Vector L i m ited a nd com m it ment s were 

entered i nto to replace a l l ou r New Zea la nd 

cu stomers’ legacy meters . T h i s prog ra m me 

i nvolves t he replacement of over 1 2 5 ,0 0 0 

meters a nd i s schedu led for complet ion i n 

t he f i rst ha l f of 2 017. T h i s w i l l prov ide cost 

s av i n g s to Mer id ia n a s wel l a s enable u s to 

of fer fa r more soph i st icated pr ici n g pla n s  

to ou r cu stomers .

W hile Australia provides challenges in the 

generation space (see com ments below)  

we continued the push into the Victorian 

retail market with the Powershop brand. 

Customer numbers are now over 30,000  

and we will start operations in New South 

Wales in the first quarter of this calendar year.

Retail market remains highly competitive 

W h i le s a les volu mes were up, a s prev iou sly 

noted , t he nu mb er of cu stomer con nect ion s 

reduced during the half year. Total installation 

cont rol p oi nt s ( IC Ps) were 2 7 3 , 572 , dow n 3 , 1 3 6  

on t he b eg i n n i n g of t he f i na ncia l yea r.  

T h i s movement wa s la rgely i n t he resident ia l 

space where there has been a lot of agg ressive 

s a les act iv it y. Mer id ia n i s a l ready ver y wel l 

p osit ioned pr ice w i se i n most net work s , w it h 

ou r pr ices b ei n g at , or close to, t he b ot tom  

of t he ra n ge. 

T he lau nch of ou r new website i n D ecemb er 

2 014 ref lect s ou r st rateg y to move cu stomer 

en ga gement on l i ne to i mprove ser v ice, 

reduce overa l l cost a nd cont i nue ou r p osit ion 

a s a leader i n su sta i nabi l it y. 

I n t he i nter i m rep or t la st yea r we noted t hat  

it wa s u n l i kely t here wou ld b e a ny net work-

w ide i ncrea ses i n t he energ y comp onent of 

ou r New Zea la nd cu stomers’ bi l l s b efore at 

lea st Ju ne t h i s yea r. T h i s w i l l prove cor rect . 

We cont i nue to rev iew ou r pr ici n g .

Operations

Hyd ro generat ion pro duced 89. 3% of 

Mer id ia n’s New Zea la nd generat ion i n t he 

p er io d , w it h t he cont r ibut ion f rom w i nd up 

1 2 % on t he prev iou s cor resp ond i n g p er io d . 

Novemb er wa s i n fact a record mont h for 

w i nd generat ion – up more t ha n 3% on t he 

prev iou s record , even a f ter a l low i n g for t he 

new generat ion f rom M i l l C reek .

I n D ecemb er we ma rked t he 10 t h a n n ivers a r y 

of t he f i rst w i nd fa r m we bu i lt – Te Āpit i w i nd 

fa r m i n Ma nawat ū . T h i s h i g h l i g hted t he 

level of i nvolvement t hat we have had a nd 

cont i nue to have w it h com mu n it ies l iv i n g 

nea r ou r a sset s . I n t he n i ne yea rs t hat t he  

Te Āpit i com mu n it y f u nd ha s b een r u n n i n g , 

we have f u nded dozen s of com mu n it y 

project s a nd i n it iat ives .

I n Australia, generation volumes at 273GW h 

ref lected t he cont r ibut ion of t he Mt Mercer 

w i nd fa r m , wh ich ha s had a l l t u rbi nes 

op erat iona l si nce Ju ne la st yea r.

O ne i ssue t hat a rose du r i n g t he p er io d wa s 

a problem w it h t he coolers on some of t he 

Ma nap ōu r i p ower stat ion t ra n sfor mers , 

wh ich led to t he deci sion to replace t wo 

t ra n sfor mers a nd pro cu re a t h i rd a s a 

spa re. T he replacement prog ra m me i s wel l 

u nder way. The first transformer, which was 

delivered i m med iately b efore C h r i st ma s ,  

wa s made op erat iona l on 1 2 Ja nua r y.  

T h i s wa s a major exerci se i nvolv i n g complex 

en g i neer i n g , desi g n a nd project ma na gement 

w it h st r ict over r id i n g requ i rement s i n  

ter m s of env i ron menta l protect ion a nd 

ad herence to hea lt h a nd s a fet y p ol icies .  

It i s a t r ibute to t he p eople i nvolved , 

i nclud i n g ou r suppl iers a nd sub cont ractors , 

t hat t he project wa s del ivered sea m lessly. 

T he second t ra n sfor mer i s ex p ected to b e 

i n sta l led i n ea rly Ma rch 2 01 5 , wh ich w i l l 

restore t he stat ion to f u l l capacit y.

Regulation

T he E lect r icit y Aut hor it y ’s ( E A’s) 

t ra n sm i ssion pr ici n g rev iew i s on t rack a nd 

we look for wa rd to t he publ icat ion of t he E A’s 

f i na l i ssues pap er on t h i s topic i n m id-2 01 5 .

T he ot her reg u lator y i ssue we a re closely 

mon itor i n g i s t he Au st ra l ia n G over n ment ’s 

rev iew of t he Renewable E nerg y Ta rget ( R ET ). 

T he R ET i s m i red i n p ol it ics a nd t he p ol it ica l 

pa r t ies i nvolved have b een u nable to reach 

a ny comprom i se t hat m i g ht del iver some 

deg ree of cer ta i nt y for pa r t icipa nt s i n t he 

Au st ra l ia n renewable energ y i ndu st r y.  

A s ha s b een prev iou sly noted , it i s d i f f icu lt 

to qua nt i f y what , i f a ny, i mpact t h i s rev iew 

m i g ht have on t he va lue of ou r Au st ra l ia n 

a sset s u nt i l t here i s some resolut ion of  

t h i s mat ter.

Tiwai Point

A s prev iou sly adv i sed , t he T iwa i Poi nt 

smelter ow ners have t he opt ion to g ive 

Meridian notice of their intention to terminate 

t he elect r icit y a g reement on 1 Ju ly t h i s yea r,  

in which case the current supply arrangements 

wou ld cea se on 31 D ecemb er 2 016 . At t h i s 

p oi nt , we have no cla r it y on where N Z A S 

sta nd s on t h i s deci sion . W h i le it i s plea si n g 

to see t he New Zea la nd dol la r depreciate 

a ga i n st t he US dol la r, wh ich i s p osit ive for t he 

smelter, i nter nat iona l a lu m i n iu m pr ices have 

b een volat i le. However, on ou r a ssessment , 

t he pla nt i s i n a si g n i f ica nt ly b et ter f i na ncia l 

p osit ion t ha n it wa s at t he t i me t he cont ract 

was renegotiated in August 2013. On balance, 

we remain hopeful that the smelter will 

continue in operation but the decision is not 

ours. The reality is that uncertainty around the 

future of the smelter is something the industry 

just has to live with as NZAS has ongoing 

termination rights under the contract.

Hydro conditions 

A s we w r ite, t he fa r m i n g com mu n it ies i n 

b ot h t he Nor t h a nd S out h I sla nd s a re goi n g 

t h rou g h a d i f f icu lt p er io d a s a resu lt of 

d rou g ht cond it ion s but ou r stora ge la kes 

a re st i l l get t i n g rea sonably reg u la r i n f lows 

f rom sma l l weat her system s . S o wh i le we a re 

a lways ver y watch f u l , at t h i s p oi nt we do not 

see a ny t h i n g i n ou r cu r rent hyd ro p osit ion 

t hat i s of si g n i f ica nt concer n .

Community involvement 

D u r i n g t he pa st si x mont h s we have sha red 

some i mp or ta nt m i lestones w it h K id sC a n 

a s it s pr i ncipa l pa r t ner. I n Ju ly for i n sta nce, 

we pa r t icipated i n a n event t hat celebrated 

ha nd i n g out t he 10 0,0 0 0 t h ra i ncoat to 

ch i ld ren i n lower deci le school s , wh ich 

i s pa r t of t he overa l l prog ra m me to meet 

t he physica l a nd nut r it iona l need s of less 

for t u nate K iw i k id s . More recent ly, t he 

fou nder a nd ch ief execut ive of K id sC a n ,  

Ju l ie C hapma n , wa s na med a s a f i na l i st  

for t he New Zea la nder of t he Yea r Awa rd . 

T h i s i s fa nta st ic recog n it ion of a l l of t he  

goo d work t hat Ju l ie a nd her tea m have  

done over ma ny yea rs . 
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Net Profit after Taxation (NPAT)

Mer id ia n’s N PAT for t he si x mont h s to 31 

D ecemb er 2 014 ( H Y2 01 5) wa s $0. 2 m h i g her 

t ha n t he s a me p er io d la st yea r. T h i s i ncluded 

negat ive fa i r va lue movement s on f i na ncia l 

i n st r u ment s of $2 5 . 5m . I f t h i s non- ca sh 

GROUP NPAT**

Financial Year Ended 30 June

Dec YTD Jun YTD

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

116.9

173.3

9.2

84.7

65.4

218.4

121.8

$M

112.9

117.1

**	 NPAT includes unrealised gains/(losses)  
on financial instruments.

GROUP UNDERLYING NPAT*

Financial Year Ended 30 June

Dec YTD Jun YTD

0 50 100 150 200 250

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015 114.8

83.0

88.3

98.9

74.4

123.4 95.6

7.2

111.6

$M

*	 NPAT minus the effects of one-off and/or infrequently  
occurring events, impairments and changes in fair value  
of financial instruments.

GROUP EBITDAF***

Financial Year Ended 30 June

Dec YTD Jun YTD

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

268.2

277.1

294.3

353.3

182.3

306.6

307.7

$M

317.1

324.3

***	Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, 
change in fair value of financial instruments, impairments,  
gain/(loss) on sale of assets and joint venture equity  
accounted earnings.

Higher energy margin and lower 
costs drove a lift in profits and 
operating cash flow to underpin 
enhanced dividends to investors.

accou nt i n g adju st ment i s excluded , a lon g 

w it h one - of f item s such a s t he $ 8 . 1 m ga i n 

on t he s a le of A rc I n novat ion s , Underly i n g 

N PAT i mproved by $ 31 . 8m (3 8 . 3%) on t he si x 

mont h s to 31 D ecemb er 2 01 3 ( H Y2 014 ).

Summary 
of Group 
performance
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MERIDIAN GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

($ MILLIONS)
6 MONTHS ENDED  

31 DEC 2014
6 MONTHS ENDED  

31 DEC 2013
12 MONTHS ENDED  

30 JUN 2014

New Zealand Energy Margin  454.9  434.9  891.5 

International Energy Margin  25.3  11.7  31.9 

Total Energy Margin  480.2  446.6  923.4 

Other Revenue  16.5  12.7  27.3 

Energy Transmission Expense (60.6) (66.7) (129.3) 

Gross Margin  436.1  392.6  821.4 

Employee and Other Operating Expenses (111.8) (124.4) (236.1) 

EBITDAF  324.3  268.2  585.3 

Depreciation and Amortisation of Intangible Assets (116.5) (105.3) (220.0) 

Impairment of Assets (0.5) -  - 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets  15.2 (2.4)  6.6 

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments  0.3  1.7 (8.4) 

Equity Accounted Joint Ventures (0.6) (0.2) (0.4) 

Operating Profit  222.2  162.0  363.1 

Net Finance Costs (40.8) (37.5) (73.7) 

Net Change in Fair Value of Financing Instruments (25.8)  39.5  27.0 

Net Profit Before Tax  155.6  164.0  316.4 

Tax (38.5) (47.1) (86.6) 

Net Profit After Tax (NPAT)  117.1  116.9  229.8 

Net Changes in Fair Value of Hedging Instruments 25.5 (41.2)  (18.6) 

Premiums Paid on Electricity Options (less Interest) (8.3) (8.3) (20.1) 

Impairment of Assets  0.5  -  -

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets (15.2)  2.4 (6.6) 

Adjustments Before Taxation  2.5 (47.1) (45.3) 

Income Tax Adjustments (4.8)  13.2  10.1 

Underlying Net Profit After Tax  114.8  83.0  194.6 

5
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EBITDAF 
31 Dec 2013

150

MOVEMENT IN EBITDAF

$M Contracted
Sales

Net VAS 
Position

Staff  & Other 
Operating 
Expenses

Transmission
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Other 
Revenue

International
Energy 
Margin

Other 
Market Costs

Spot 
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Revenues

Net Cost 
of Buy-Side 

Hedges
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EBITDAF
31 Dec 2014

268.2

18.9 (3.9) 7.3 (0.4)
13.6

6.13.8

324.3

(1.9)

12.6NZ Energy Margin +$20.0M

EBITDAF

E BI T DA F i n H Y2 01 5 wa s $ 324 . 3 m , $ 5 6 . 1 m 

( 2 0.9%) h i g her t ha n i n H Y2 014 . T he H Y2 01 5 

resu lt i ncluded $ 5 . 2 m of i n su ra nce pro ceed s 

relat i n g to t he C h r i stchu rch ea r t hqua ke of 

Febr ua r y 2 01 1 a nd b enef ited f rom no rep eat 

of $ 8 . 3 m of I PO cost s t hat were i ncu r red i n 

H Y2 014 . O n a l i ke -for-l i ke ba si s , remov i n g 

t hese item s , E BI T DA F i mproved by 1 5 .4% on 

H Y2 014 . T h i s i mprovement wa s d r iven by 

b ot h a n upl i f t i n Mer id ia n’s energ y ma rg i n 

a nd a reduct ion i n op erat i n g cost s .

Energy Margin

I n New Zea la nd t he complet ion of t he M i l l 

C reek w i nd fa r m i ncrea sed w i nd generat ion 

by 92 GW h . Hyd ro generat ion wa s a l so up 

sl i g ht ly on st ron g f i rst qua r ter i n f lows . H i g her 

generat ion enabled Mer id ia n to sel l h i g her 

volu mes of hed ge cont ract s . I n add it ion , t he 

volu me of acqu i red generat ion t h rou g h buy-

side hed ges i n H Y2 01 5 wa s dow n on H Y2 014 , 

wh ich had i ncluded hed ge cont ract s entered 

i nto to cover r i sk s a sso ciated w it h t he la rge 

nu mb er of H V D C outa ges i n t hat p er io d .

Mer id ia n’s New Zea la nd reta i l s a les 

volu mes were up 107.7GW h on H Y2 014 , 

ma i n ly ref lect i n g g row t h i n t he SM E a nd 

a g r ibu si ness cu stomer ba se. St i f f comp et it ion 

mea nt t hat avera ge pr ice p er M W h fel l by 1% , 

w it h most of t he fa l l relat i n g to com mercia l 

a nd i ndu st r ia l cu stomers rol l i n g of f f i xed-

ter m cont ract s . Mer id ia n’s resident ia l 

cu stomers s aw no net work-w ide energ y  

pr ice i ncrea ses i n t he p er io d .

NEW ZEALAND GENERATION VOLUMES (GWh)

Financial Year Ended 30 June

Dec YTD Jun YTD

0 5,000 10,000 15,000

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015 6,902

6,651

6,050

6,190

6,020

6,804 6,848

4,806

6,496

GWh

NEW ZEALAND RETAIL ELECTRICITY  
SALES VOLUMES (GWh)

6 MONTHS ENDED 
31 DEC 2014

6 MONTHS ENDED 
31 DEC 2013

YEAR ENDED 
30 JUN 2014

Powershop  310  286  546 

Meridian Residential, SME, Agri  1,570  1,484  2,864 

Meridian Corporate  1,113  1,116  2,344 

Total Contracted Sales Volumes  2,993  2,886  5,754 

MERIDIAN AND POWERSHOP NEW ZEALAND CUSTOMER CONNECTIONS

0 50,000 100,000 150,000 200,000 250,000 300,000 350,000

JUN 2011

JUN 2012

JUN 2013

JUN 2014

DEC 2014

Meridian NI Powershop NI

ICPs

Meridian SI Powershop SI

104,043

106,085

116,580

109,565

42,040

38,308

35,369

21,169

113,979

114,721

122,834

129,651

13,510

12,963 

12,521

12,391

107,895 41,224 113,957 13,632
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I ncrea sed dema nd i n New Zea la nd a lon g 

w it h f u l l H V D C ava i labi l it y a nd reduced 

out put f rom t her ma l generators mea nt t hat 

Mer id ia n’s avera ge wholes a le pr ice i n H Y2 01 5 

wa s $6 4 . 2 M W h compa red w it h $ 39.7 M W h 

i n H Y2 014 . T h i s i ncrea sed b ot h Mer id ia n’s 

generat ion revenue a nd t he cost of supply i n g 

it s reta i l cu stomers .

T he net ef fect of h i g her reta i l ,  sel l- side hed ge 

a nd generat ion volu mes a lon g w it h lower 

acqu i red generat ion a nd h i g her wholes a le 

pr ices wa s a n i ncrea se of $2 0.0 m (4 .6%) i n  

New Zea la nd energ y ma rg i n .

I nter nat iona l energ y ma rg i n i ncrea sed by 

$1 3 .6m , more t ha n doubl i n g on t he pr ior 

compa rat ive p er io d . T h i s i ncluded 179 GW h 

of i ncrea sed generat ion on t he complet ion 

of t he Mt Mercer w i nd fa r m . T he ga i n on 

generat ion volu mes wa s pa r t ia l ly of fset 

by wea ker wholes a le pr ices net of hed ges , 

ref lect i n g cont i nu i n g u ncer ta i nt y i n t he 

Au st ra l ia n reg u lator y env i ron ment . T he 

f u l l lau nch of Powershop i n Victor ia a l so 

cont r ibuted to overa l l I nter nat iona l energ y 

ma rg i n w it h over 3 0,0 0 0 cu stomers si g ned 

up by 31 D ecemb er 2 014 .

Costs

E nerg y t ra n sm i ssion ex p en ses fel l by 

$6 . 1 m i n H Y2 01 5 compa red w it h H Y2 014 . 

T h i s ref lected lower t ha n a nt icipated f i na l 

cost s on t he H V D C upg rade. Nex t yea r ’s 

T ra n sp ower cha rges a re a nt icipated to r i se.

Employee and other operating costs reduced 

by $1 2 .6m compa red w it h t he s a me p er io d 

la st yea r. Adju st i n g for la st yea r ’s I PO 

ex p en ses st i l l s aw a reduct ion of $ 4 . 3 m 

(3 .7%) i n cost s . T h i s wa s ach ieved despite 

add it iona l ma i ntena nce cost s i n resp ect of 

t he t wo new w i nd fa r m s a nd op erat iona l 

cost s a sso ciated w it h Powershop Au st ra l ia .

B elow E BI T DA F, net f i na nce cost s i ncrea sed 

by $ 3 . 3 m (8 . 8%), ref lect i n g f i na nce lea se 

i nterest on t ra n sm i ssion con nect ion a sset s 

a nd t he end of capita l i s at ion of i nterest on 

bu i ld project s . T he completed w i nd fa r m s 

a lon g w it h t he new generat ion cont rol system 

a l so added $1 1 . 2 m ( 10.6%) to depreciat ion a nd 

a mor t i s at ion cha rges .

Non- ca sh fa i r va lue movement s on 

der ivat ives were la rgely d r iven by cha n ges 

i n t he va lue of i nterest rate hed ges . T he d rop 

i n t he for wa rd i nterest rate cu r ve si nce Ju ne 

2 014 cau sed a $2 5 . 5m fa l l i n t he ma rket va lue 

of t hese hed ges . T h i s ha s no ca sh i mpact  

on Mer id ia n .

AVERAGE NEW ZEALAND WHOLESALE PRICE  
RECEIVED FOR GENERATION ($/MWh)

FINANCIAL YEAR

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Q1  $58.3  $48.6  $62.4  $83.6  $47.5 

Q2  $70.6  $31.5  $34.8  $71.2  $54.8 

Half Year  $64.2  $39.7  $47.7  $77.6  $51.2 

Q3  $94.7  $83.4  $109.9  $35.4 

Q4  $65.6  $80.8  $153.3  $35.6 

Full Year  $60.1  $64.9  $100.7  $43.3 

MERIDIAN GENERATION 

 HYDRO

NEW ZEALAND3

PLANT
CAPACITY

MW

6 MONTHS ENDED
31 DEC 2014

GWh2

6 MONTHS ENDED
31 DEC 2013

GWh

YEAR ENDED
30 JUN 2014

GWh

Ōhau A 264 630 520 1,168

Ōhau B 212 522 439 981

Ōhau C 212 519 434 973

Benmore 540 1,260 1,014 2,314

Aviemore 220 521 431 960

Waitaki 90 267 243 526

Manapōuri 800 2,444 2,910 4,981

Total Hydro Generation 2,338 6,163 5,991 11,903

 WIND

NEW ZEALAND

PLANT
CAPACITY

MW

6 MONTHS ENDED
31 DEC 2014

GWh

6 MONTHS ENDED
31 DEC 2013

GWh

YEAR ENDED
30 JUN 2014

GWh

Te Uku 64 121 116 211

Te Āpiti 91 163 174 325

Mill Creek 60 92 - 1

West Wind 143 272 273 534

White Hill 58 91 97 173

Total New Zealand Wind 416 739 660 1,244

AUSTRALIA4

Mt Millar 70 89 101 185

Mt Mercer 131 184 5 100

Total Australia Wind 201 273 106 285

Total Wind Generation 617 1,012 766 1,529

2	 Gigawatt hours. One GWh is equivalent to enough electricity for 125 average New Zealand homes for one year.

3	 Includes Meridian’s own use generation volumes.

4	 After the application of the marginal loss factor prescribed by the Australian Energy Market Operator.
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Operating cash flow and investment 
expenditure 

Net cash f low from operating activities was 

$25. 3m (13. 2%) higher than in HY2014.  

This ref lects the improvement in EBITDAF, 

partially offset by higher income tax payments.

Wit h t he complet ion of M i l l Creek a nd Mt 

Mercer ea rly i n t he ha l f yea r, i nvest ment 

ex pend it u re at $106 . 5m was $62 .4 m lower 

t ha n i n H Y2014 . Bot h projects were completed 

u nder bud get . E xclud i n g t he costs of t hese 

projects , Mer id ia n’s rema i n i n g capita l 

ex pend it u re was $23 .9m i n t he ha l f yea r.

MERIDIAN GROUP SUMMARY CASH FLOW  
($ MILLIONS)

6 MONTHS ENDED 
31 DEC 2014

6 MONTHS ENDED 
31 DEC 2013

YEAR ENDED 
30 JUN 2014

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  216.8  191.5  432.8 

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (67.1) (161.9) (253.4) 

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (194.8) (158.5) (282.2) 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (45.1) (128.9) (102.8) 

GROUP INVESTMENT EXPENDITURE

Financial Year Ended 30 June

Dec YTD Jun YTD

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

168.9

183.3

208.4

228.6

320.2

44.0

93.4

$M

146.9

106.5

Dividends

A n ord i na r y i nter i m d iv idend of 4 . 8 cent s p er 

sha re a nd a sp ecia l d iv idend of 1 .4 cent s p er  

sha re ha s b een decla red for t he si x mont h s 

end i n g 31 D ecemb er 2 014 . B ot h d iv idend s  

a re to b e f u l ly i mputed . 

NET TANGIBLE ASSETS PER SECURITY
31 DEC 2014 
(NZ CENTS)

31 DEC 2013 
(NZ CENTS)

Net Tangible Assets per Security 168 175

CONTROL OF ENTITIES GAINED OR LOST DURING THE PERIOD

NAME OF ENTITY SOLD/DISSOLVED PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY INTEREST HELD BY GROUP

Whisper Tech (UK) Limited 11/09/14 Non-trading -

Meridian Energy USA Incorporated 8/10/14 Development -

ARC Innovations Limited 1/12/14 Metering -

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE ENTITIES

NAME OF ENTITY COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION DATE PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY INTEREST HELD BY GROUP

EDDI Project JV New Zealand 01/05/12 Dam Management Systems 50%

Hunter Downs Development Company New Zealand 01/07/13 Irrigation Development 68%

8
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Income Statement

NOTE

GROUP

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Operating Revenue 

Energy Sales Revenue 1,317.0 1,085.2 2,481.5

Energy Related Services Revenue 7.9 6.8 15.8

Other Revenue 8.6 5.9 11.5

Total Operating Revenue 1,333.5 1,097.9 2,508.8

Operating Expenses 

Energy Related Expenses (595.9) (426.2) (1,130.5)

Energy Distribution Expenses (240.9) (212.4) (427.6)

Energy Transmission Expenses (60.6) (66.7) (129.3)

Employee Expenses (43.8) (47.3) (90.5)

Other Operating Expenses (68.0) (77.1) (145.6)

(1,009.2) (829.7) (1,923.5)

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation, Amortisation, Change in  
Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Other Significant Items (EBITDAF) 324.3 268.2 585.3

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets 3 15.2 (2.4) 6.6

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures (0.6) (0.2) (0.4)

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (11.8) (11.1) (21.4)

Depreciation (104.7) (94.2) (198.6)

Impairment of Assets (0.5) - - 

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain/(Loss) (Operational) 13 0.3 1.7 (8.4)

Operating Profit 222.2 162.0 363.1

Finance Costs and Other Finance Related Income/(Expenses)

Finance Costs 4 (45.4) (41.7) (82.2)

Interest Income 4.6 4.2 8.5

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Loss)/Gain (Financing) 13 (25.8) 39.5 27.0

Profit Before Tax 155.6 164.0 316.4

Income Tax Expense 5 (38.5) (47.1) (86.6)

Profit After Tax 117.1 116.9 229.8

Profit After Tax Attributable to: 

Shareholders of the Parent Company 117.1 116.9 229.8

Earnings per Share from Operations Attributable  
to Equity Holders of the Company During the Year:

Basic Earnings per Share ($) 0.05 0.05 0.09

Diluted Earnings per Share ($) 0.05 0.05 0.09

10 The Summary of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Statements form an integral part of these Condensed Interim Financial Statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

NOTE

GROUP

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Profit After Tax for the Period 117.1 116.9 229.8

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss:

Net Loss on Available for Sale Investments (0.8) (1.2) (1.4)

Net Loss on Cash Flow Hedges (0.2) (2.8) (14.6)

Reclassify Foreign Currency Translation Reserve to Profit or Loss (1.5) - 4.9

Exchange Differences Arising from Translation of Foreign Operations (1.3) (12.9) (15.1)

Income Tax relating to items that may be reclassified 10 0.3 1.1 4.7

Other Comprehensive Income for the Period Net of Tax (3.5) (15.8) (21.5)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period Net of Tax 113.6 101.1 208.3

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period Attributable to: 

Shareholders of the Parent Company 113.6 101.1 208.3

11The Summary of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Statements form an integral part of these Condensed Interim Financial Statements.



Statement of Financial Position

NOTE

GROUP

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

Shareholders’ Equity 

Share Capital 6 1,597.2 1,598.6 1,598.6

Reserves 2,920.3 3,036.5 3,035.1

Total Equity 4,517.5 4,635.1 4,633.7

Represented by: 

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 231.0 252.4 276.4

Accounts Receivable 217.1 180.7 182.7

Assets Classified as Held for Sale 8 7.0 47.2 26.5

Other Assets 25.1 14.4 17.5

Derivative Financial Instruments 13 26.6 33.6 19.5

Total Current Assets 506.8 528.3 522.6

Non-Current Assets 

Other Assets 0.4 0.5 0.4

Equity Accounted Joint Ventures 0.1 - 0.2

Intangible Assets 45.7 55.5 54.0

Property, Plant and Equipment 9 6,852.9 6,809.3 6,929.0

Deferred Tax Asset 10 19.9 11.6 20.4

Derivative Financial Instruments 13 123.2 68.0 63.2

Total Non-Current Assets 7,042.2 6,944.9 7,067.2

Total Assets 7,549.0 7,473.2 7,589.8

Current Liabilities 

Liabilities Classified as Held for Sale 8 0.1 1.0 1.3

Payables and Accruals 232.7 176.8 235.6

Current Tax Payable 41.6 47.5 57.1

Current Portion of Term Borrowings 11 133.7 62.2 133.4

Finance Lease Payable 0.6 - 0.6

Derivative Financial Instruments 13 24.7 43.9 37.9

Total Current Liabilities 433.4 331.4 465.9

Non-Current Liabilities 

Deferred Tax Liability 10 1,343.3 1,354.6 1,349.7

Term Borrowings 11 1,053.2 1,063.9 959.1

Term Payables 14.1 - 0.6

Provisions 7.2 - 7.0

Finance Lease Payable 47.2 - 48.6

Derivative Financial Instruments 13 133.1 88.2 125.2

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,598.1 2,506.7 2,490.2

Total Liabilities 3,031.5 2,838.1 2,956.1

Net Assets 4,517.5 4,635.1 4,633.7

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors who authorised the issue of the Financial Statements on 17 February 2015.

Chris Moller						      Jan Dawson 
Chairman, 17 February 2015					     Chair of Audit and Risk Committee, 17 February 2015				  
	

1 2 The Summary of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Statements form an integral part of these Condensed Interim Financial Statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP UNAUDITED $M

NOTE SH
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Balance at 1 July 2014 1,598.6 0.2 3,073.8 (23.4) (1.4) 0.6 (14.7) 4,633.7

Profit for the Period - - - - - - 117.1 117.1

Cash Flow Hedges:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - (0.2) - - (0.2)

Available for Sale Reserve:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - - (0.8) - (0.8)

Reclassify Foreign Currency  
Translation Reserve to Profit or Loss - - - (1.5) - - - (1.5)

Exchange Differences Arising from  
Translation of Foreign Operations - - - (1.3) - - - (1.3)

Income Tax Relating to Other  
Comprehensive Income - - - - 0.1 0.2 - 0.3

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period - - - (2.8) (0.1) (0.6) 117.1 113.6

Movement in Share Options - 0.2 - - - - - 0.2

Acquisition of Treasury Shares 6 (1.4) - - - - - - (1.4)

Dividends Paid 7 - - - - - - (228.6) (228.6)

Balance at 31 December 2014 1,597.2 0.4 3,073.8 (26.2) (1.5) - (126.2) 4,517.5
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Balance at 1 July 2013 1,600.0 3,073.9 (13.2) 8.9 1.6 16.8 4,688.0

Profit for the Period - - - - - 116.9 116.9

Cash Flow Hedges:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - (2.8) - - (2.8)

Available for Sale Reserve:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - (1.2) - (1.2)

Exchange Differences Arising from Translation  
of Foreign Operations - - (12.9) - - - (12.9)

Asset Revaluation Reserve Transferred  
to Retained Earnings - (0.1) - - - 0.1 - 

Income Tax Relating to Other Comprehensive Income - - - 0.8 0.3 - 1.1

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period - (0.1) (12.9) (2.0) (0.9) 117.0 101.1

Acquisition of Treasury Shares 6 (1.4) - - - - - (1.4)

Dividends Paid 7 - - - - - (152.6) (152.6)

Balance at 31 December 2013 1,598.6 3,073.8 (26.1) 6.9 0.7 (18.8) 4,635.1
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Statement of Changes in Equity  (continued)
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Balance at 1 July 2013 1,600.0 - 3,073.9 (13.2) 8.9 1.6 16.8 4,688.0

Profit for the Period - - - - - - 229.8 229.8

Cash Flow Hedges:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - (14.6) - - (14.6)

Available for Sale Reserve:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - - (1.4) - (1.4)

Reclassify Foreign Currency Translation 
Reserve to Profit or Loss - - - 4.9 - - - 4.9

Exchange Differences Arising from  
Translation of Foreign Operations - - - (15.1) - - - (15.1)

Asset Revaluation Reserve Transferred  
to Retained Earnings - - (0.1) - - - 0.1 - 

Income Tax Relating to Other  
Comprehensive Income - - - - 4.3 0.4 - 4.7

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period - - (0.1) (10.2) (10.3) (1.0) 229.9 208.3

Movement in Share Options - 0.2 - - - - - 0.2

Acquisition of Treasury Shares 6 (1.4) - - - - - - (1.4)

Dividends Paid 7 - - - - - - (261.4) (261.4)

Balance at 30 June 2014 1,598.6 0.2 3,073.8 (23.4) (1.4) 0.6 (14.7) 4,633.7
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Meridian Energy Limited Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the six months ended 31 December 2014

Statement of Cash Flows

NOTE

GROUP

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Operating Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Receipts from Customers 1,002.4 963.5 2,083.4

Interest Received 4.6 4.2 8.5

1,007.0 967.7 2,091.9

Cash was Applied to:

Payments to Suppliers and Employees (685.9) (677.9) (1,480.5)

Interest Paid (40.7) (39.9) (80.0)

Income Tax Paid (63.6) (58.4) (98.6)

(790.2) (776.2) (1,659.1)

Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities 216.8 191.5 432.8

Investment Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 9 15.4 4.7 41.1

Finance Lease Receivable - 0.2 0.2

Sale of Subsidiaries 20.1 2.1 20.1

Sale of Investments 3.9 - 1.0

39.4 7.0 62.4

Cash was Applied to:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (101.2) (151.7) (283.7)

Capitalised Interest (0.4) (3.6) (9.3)

Purchase of Intangible Assets (4.0) (13.4) (21.7)

Purchase of Investments (0.5) (0.2) (0.6)

Finance Lease Payable (0.4) - (0.5)

(106.5) (168.9) (315.8)

Net Cash Outflows from Investing Activities (67.1) (161.9) (253.4)

Financing Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Proceeds from Borrowings 203.7 80.4 133.7

203.7 80.4 133.7

Cash was Applied to:

Shares Purchased for Long Term Incentive (1.0) (1.0) (1.0)

Dividends Paid 7 (228.6) (152.6) (261.4)

Term Borrowings Paid (168.9) (85.3) (153.5)

(398.5) (238.9) (415.9)

Net Cash Outflows from Financing Activities (194.8) (158.5) (282.2)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (45.1) (128.9) (102.8)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 276.4 382.8 382.8

Cash Removed on Sale of Subsidiaries - - (1.8)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Net Cash (0.3) (1.5) (1.8)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 231.0 252.4 276.4
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Statement of Cash Flows  (continued)

RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AFTER TAX FOR THE PERIOD  
TO CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES NOTE

GROUP

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Profit after Tax for the Period 117.1 116.9 229.8

Adjustments for Operating Activities Non-Cash Items:

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 11.8 11.1 21.4

Depreciation 104.7 94.2 198.6

Movement in Deferred Tax (9.6) (7.6) (17.8)

Total Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Loss/(Gain) 13 25.5 (41.2) (18.6)

Cash Receipt on Closeout of Aluminium Commodity Swap - 54.6 54.6

Cash Payments of Option Premiums (8.6) (8.9) (21.2)

Share Based Payments 0.2 - 0.2

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures 0.6 0.2 0.4

124.6 102.4 217.6

Items Classified as Investing Activities:

(Gain)/Loss on Sale of Assets 3 (15.2) 2.4 (6.6)

Finance Lease Interest - 0.1 - 

Impairment of Assets 0.5 - - 

(14.7) 2.5 (6.6)

Items Classified as Financing Activities:

Amortisation of Prepaid Debt Facility Fees 0.4 1.6 1.9

0.4 1.6 1.9

Changes in Working Capital Items

(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable (34.4) 74.9 71.8

(Increase) in Other Assets (7.6) (3.1) (5.0)

(Decrease) in Payables and Accruals (2.9) (99.9) (39.2)

(Decrease)/Increase in Current Tax Payable (15.5) (3.8) 5.8

Working Capital Items included in Investing Activities 55.3 - (53.2)

Working Capital Items included in Financing Activities and Other Non-cash items (5.5) - 9.9

(10.6) (31.9) (9.9)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 216.8 191.5 432.8
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1. Summary of Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity and Statement  
of Compliance

Meridian Energy Limited is a profit-oriented 
entity domiciled in New Zealand, registered 
under the Companies Act 1993 and is a Financial 
Markets Conduct reporting entity for the 
purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 2013 and 
the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013. Meridian 
Energy Limited is majority owned by Her Majesty 
the Queen in Right of New Zealand (the “Crown”) 
and is dual listed on the New Zealand Stock 
Exchange (NZX) and the Australian Securities 
Exchange (ASX). The Company is bound by the 
requirements of the Public Finance Act 1989.

Meridian Energy Limited’s core business is the 
generation, trading and retailing of electricity  
and wider complementary products and services.

The condensed interim financial statements  
(the Group financial statements) are presented 
for Meridian Energy Limited and its subsidiaries 
(together referred to as “Meridian” or the 
“Group”) at, and for the six months ended  
31 December 2014.

The financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the Directors on 17 February 2015.

Basis of Preparation

These unaudited condensed interim financial 
statements have been prepared using 
New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (NZ GAAP), accounting policies 
consistent with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and New Zealand equivalents  
to IFRS (NZ IFRS) and in accordance with IAS 34:  
Interim Financial Reporting and NZ IAS 34: 
Interim Financial Reporting as appropriate  
for a profit-oriented entity.

The financial statements have been prepared  
on the basis of historical cost modified by the 
revaluation of certain assets and liabilities.  
The accrual basis of accounting has been used 
unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements are presented in  
New Zealand dollars rounded to the nearest 
million ($m).

The accounting policies and methods of 
computation set out in the Group financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2014  
have been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in the financial statements.  
The application of new or amended standards 
has had no material impact on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements.

Judgements and Estimations

The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with NZ IFRS requires judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and reported amounts  
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 
The application of these is consistent with that 
used in the preparation of the Group’s financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.  
The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision 
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements that have a significant effect on  
the financial statements and estimates with a 
significant risk of material adjustment in the next 
year are in relation to the valuation of generation 
structures, plant assets and derivatives.  
In addition, accounting judgements are made in 
respect of the hedge designation and valuation 
of certain financial instruments, assessments of 
hedge effectiveness and the determination of 
useful lives of property, plant and equipment.
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2. Segment Reporting

Meridian has determined the operating  
segments based on the reports reviewed  
by the Chief Executive to assess performance, 
allocate resources and make strategic decisions. 
He considers the business from the perspective 
of three reportable segments, being Wholesale, 
Retail and International.

Performance of the operating segments is 
measured on an EBITDAF basis.

The following balance sheet items are not allocated 
to operating segments as they are not reported 
to the Chief Executive at a segmental level:

-	 Assets

-	 Liabilities

The revenue from external parties is measured  
in a manner consistent with that in the Income 
Statement. Meridian transacted the equivalent  
of approximately 37% (December 2013: 40%, 
June 2014: 38%) of its generation output to a single 
counterparty through a Contract for Difference 
(CfD). The revenues received from this customer 
are attributable to the Wholesale segment.

The accounting policies of the reportable 
segments are the same as those applied in the 
preparation of the Group financial statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Wholesale Segment

The Wholesale segment encompasses activity 
associated with Meridian’s generation of 
electricity and the sale into the wholesale 
electricity market, the purchase of electricity 
from the wholesale electricity market to sell  
to large industrial customers and the Retail 
segment, the development of New Zealand 
renewable energy generation opportunities  
and activities such as risk management and  
dam consultancy services.

Retail Segment

The Retail segment encompasses activity 
associated with the purchase of electricity  
from the Wholesale segment, the retail sale  
of electricity to retail customers and the 
provision of metering services.

The Retail segment purchases electricity from 
the Wholesale segment at an average annual 
fixed price of $80-$85 per MWh for electricity, 
which is sold to customers on fixed price, 
variable volume agreements and electricity 
purchased for customers on spot agreements  
at the prevailing wholesale spot market rates.

On 1 December 2014, Arc Innovations Limited,  
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent,  
was sold as a going concern.

International Segment

The International segment comprises Meridian’s 
Australian operations, which generate, sell and 
retail electricity into the relevant markets.

On 15 May 2014, CalRENEW-1 LLC, a controlled 
entity involved in the solar generation of 
electricity, was sold as a going concern.

Unallocated

Unallocated encompasses the activities  
and centrally based costs that support the 
Wholesale, Retail and International segments, 
and includes non-operating subsidiaries.

The segment information provided to the Chief Executive for the reportable segments for the six months ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

WHOLESALE
$M

RETAIL
$M

INTERNATIONAL
$M

UNALLOCATED
$M

INTER-SEGMENT  
ITEMS

$M
TOTAL

$M

Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 948.6 567.2 36.6 - (235.4) 1,317.0

Energy Related Expenses (554.3) (271.8) (5.2) - 235.4 (595.9)

Energy Distribution Expense - (234.8) (6.1) - - (240.9)

Energy Margin 394.3 60.6 25.3 - - 480.2

Other Revenue 3.4 8.8 - 26.6 (22.3) 16.5

Energy Transmission Expense (58.9) - (1.7) - - (60.6)

Gross Margin 338.8 69.4 23.6 26.6 (22.3) 436.1

Employee Expenses (13.3) (15.8) (3.4) (11.6) 0.3 (43.8)

Other Operating Expenses (23.7) (27.6) (8.3) (9.6) 1.2 (68.0)

EBITDAF 301.8 26.0 11.9 5.4 (20.8) 324.3

Reconciliation of Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 948.6 567.2 36.6 - (235.4) 1,317.0

Other Revenue 3.4 8.8 - 26.6 (22.3) 16.5

Inter-Segment Revenue (235.4) - - (22.3) 257.7 -

Revenue from External Customers 716.6 576.0 36.6 4.3 - 1,333.5
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2. Segment Reporting  (continued)

The segment information provided to the Chief Executive for the reportable segments for the six months ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

WHOLESALE
$M

RETAIL
$M

INTERNATIONAL
$M

UNALLOCATED
$M

INTER-SEGMENT  
ITEMS

$M
TOTAL

$M

Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 768.4 568.0 12.5 - (263.7) 1,085.2

Energy Related Expenses (396.4) (292.9) (0.6) - 263.7 (426.2)

Energy Distribution Expense - (212.2) (0.2) - - (212.4)

Energy Margin 372.0 62.9 11.7 - - 446.6

Other Revenue 4.3 9.1 - 5.3 (6.0) 12.7

Energy Transmission Expense (64.8) - (1.9) - - (66.7)

Gross Margin 311.5 72.0 9.8 5.3 (6.0) 392.6

Employee Expenses (14.8) (16.3) (4.6) (12.1) 0.5 (47.3)

Other Operating Expenses (25.0) (28.0) (4.1) (20.5) 0.5 (77.1)

EBITDAF 271.7 27.7 1.1 (27.3) (5.0) 268.2

Reconciliation of Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 768.4 568.0 12.5 - (263.7) 1,085.2

Other Revenue 4.3 9.1 - 5.3 (6.0) 12.7

Inter-Segment Revenue (263.7) (1.0) - (5.0) 269.7 -

Revenue from External Customers 509.0 576.1 12.5 0.3 - 1,097.9

The segment information provided to the Chief Executive for the reportable segments for the year ended 30 June 2014 is as follows:

WHOLESALE
$M

RETAIL
$M

INTERNATIONAL
$M

UNALLOCATED
$M

INTER-SEGMENT  
ITEMS

$M
TOTAL

$M

Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 1,862.9 1,120.6 37.4 - (539.4) 2,481.5

Energy Related Expenses (1,063.7) (603.0) (3.2) - 539.4 (1,130.5)

Energy Distribution Expense - (425.3) (2.3) - - (427.6)

Energy Margin 799.2 92.3 31.9 - - 923.4

Dividend and Other Revenue 9.8 19.7 - 12.2 (14.4) 27.3

Energy Transmission Expense (126.6) - (2.7) - - (129.3)

Gross Margin 682.4 112.0 29.2 12.2 (14.4) 821.4

Employee Expenses (28.3) (32.1) (8.0) (23.0) 0.9 (90.5)

Other Operating Expenses (51.0) (55.5) (10.2) (30.8) 1.9 (145.6)

EBITDAF 603.1 24.4 11.0 (41.6) (11.6) 585.3

Reconciliation of Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 1,862.9 1,120.6 37.4 - (539.4) 2,481.5

Dividend and Other Revenue 9.8 19.7 - 12.2 (14.4) 27.3

Inter-Segment Revenue (539.4) - - (14.4) 553.8 -

Revenue from External Customers 1,333.3 1,140.3 37.4 (2.2) - 2,508.8
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2. Segment Reporting  (continued)

Information Relating to Geographical Area Operations

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Total Revenue in:

New Zealand 1,296.9 1,085.4 2,471.4

Australia 36.6 10.8 34.8

United States of America - 1.7 2.6

1,333.5 1,097.9 2,508.8

Reconciliation of EBITDAF to Profit before Tax provided as follows:	

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

EBITDAF for Reportable Segments 339.7 300.5 638.5

Unallocated and Inter Segment EBITDAF (15.4) (32.3) (53.2)

Total Group EBITDAF 324.3 268.2 585.3

Impairment of Assets (0.5) - - 

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets 15.2 (2.4) 6.6

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures (0.6) (0.2) (0.4)

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (11.8) (11.1) (21.4)

Depreciation (104.7) (94.2) (198.6)

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Loss)/Gain (25.5) 41.2 18.6

Finance Costs and Other Finance Related Expenses (40.8) (37.5) (73.7)

Group Profit before Tax 155.6 164.0 316.4

3.	 Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 4.6 (2.4) 11.3

Gain on Sale of Investments Available for Sale 1.0 - 0.2

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Subsidiaries 9.6 - (4.9)

Total Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets 15.2 (2.4) 6.6

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Subsidiaries

On 1 December 2014 the Group disposed of  
its entire interest in Arc Innovations Limited,  
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent,  
based on final completion financial statements. 
This resulted in a gain of $8.1m to the Group.

On 8 October 2014 the Group dissolved Meridian 
Energy USA, Inc., a controlled entity of the 
Parent, resulting in a gain of $1.5m to the Group.

During the year ending 30 June 2014, the Group 
disposed of its entire interest in CalRENEW-1 LLC, 
a controlled entity of the Parent, resulting in a 
loss of $4.9m to the Group.
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4. Finance Costs

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Interest on Borrowings 42.6 45.4 87.9

Interest on Finance Lease Payable 3.2 - 3.7

Less Capitalised Interest (0.4) (3.7) (9.4)

45.4 41.7 82.2

Interest is capitalised during construction of assets that take a substantial period of time and where borrowing costs  
are directly attributable to the construction of those assets.

Total interest expense for financial liabilities at amortised cost is $17.0m (31 December 2013: $16.7m, 30 June 2014: $33.4m).

5. Income Tax Expense

NOTE

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Income Tax Expense

Current Tax Expense

Current Income Tax Charge 48.1 57.1 110.6

Adjustments Regarding Current Income Tax of Prior Years - (2.4) (6.2)

Total Current Tax Expense 48.1 54.7 104.4

Deferred Tax Expense

Relating to Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences (9.6) (7.6) (17.8)

Total Deferred Tax Expense 10 (9.6) (7.6) (17.8)

Total Income Tax Expense 38.5 47.1 86.6

Income Tax Expense can be reconciled to accounting profit as follows:

Profit Before Tax 155.6 164.0 316.4

Income Tax at Applicable Tax Rates 43.2 45.8 88.0

Tax Effect of Expenditure Not Deductible for Tax 0.2 3.7 5.5

Tax Effect of Income Not Subject to Tax (4.3) - (4.3)

Income Tax (Over)/Under Provided in Prior Year (0.6) (2.4) (2.6)

Income Tax Expense 38.5 47.1 86.6

Applicable Group tax rates for the current and prior financial years are 28% for New Zealand and 30% for Australia.

21

 Meridian Energy Limited Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the six months ended 31 December 2014



6. Equity

Share Capital

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

SHARES

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

SHARES

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

SHARES 

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

Opening Balance of Ordinary Shares issued 2,562,034,984 1,598.6 1,600,000,002 1,600.0 1,600,000,002 1,600.0

Bonus Shares Issued - - 962,999,998 - 962,999,998 - 

Treasury Shares Acquired1 (743,254) (1.4) (965,016) (1.4) (965,016) (1.4)

Closing Balance of Ordinary Shares issued 2,561,291,730 1,597.2 2,562,034,984 1,598.6 2,562,034,984 1,598.6

1	 Related to shares held on trust for participants in the Executive Long Term Incentive plan. It includes provision for payment of the final instalment of $0.50 per share.

On 19 September 2013 Meridian issued 962,999,998 bonus shares for total consideration of $1.

7. Dividends

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

2014 Final Dividend Paid 228.6 - - 

2014 Interim Dividend Paid - - 108.8

2013 Final Dividend Paid - 152.6 152.6

228.6 152.6 261.4

On 17 February 2015 the Board declared a fully imputed interim dividend of $123.0m (4.8 cents per share)  
and a fully imputed special dividend of $35.9m (1.4 cents per share) payable on 15 April 2015.

8. Assets and Liabilities Classified as Held for Sale

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

Arc Innovations Limited - - 12.8

Meridian Energy USA Incorporated - 17.3 - 

Farm Related Assets 7.0 29.9 13.7

Total Assets Held for Sale 7.0 47.2 26.5

Arc Innovations Limited - - 1.1

Meridian Energy USA Incorporated - 0.8 - 

Farm Related Liabilities 0.1 0.2 0.2

Total Liabilities Held for Sale 0.1 1.0 1.3

Net Assets Classified as Held for Sale 6.9 46.2 25.2

22

 Meridian Energy Limited Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Statements for the six months ended 31 December 2014



9.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Additions at Cost 44.5 146.0 346.3

Carrying Value of Disposals
(including those classified as Held for Sale, excluding disposal of Subsidiaries)

10.8 7.1 29.8

Proceeds of Disposals
(including those classified as Held for Sale, excluding disposal of Subsidiaries)

15.4 4.7 41.1

10. Deferred Tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group, and the movements thereon,  
during the current and prior reporting periods.

NOTE

UNAUDITED 
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED 
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED 
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Balance at Beginning of Period 1,329.3 1,351.5 1,351.5

Recognised in the Income Statement:

Movement in Temporary Differences 5 (9.6) (7.6) (17.8)

(9.6) (7.6) (17.8)

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

Movement in Temporary Differences (Equity) (0.3) (1.1) (4.7)

(0.3) (1.1) (4.7)

Effect of Retranslating Foreign Currency Opening Balances 0.2 0.2 0.3

Effect of Sale of Subsidiaries 3.8 - - 

Balance at End of Period 1,323.4 1,343.0 1,329.3

The movement in temporary differences recognised in the income 
statement consists of the following:

Property, Plant and Equipment (6.9) (3.7) (4.8)

Term and Finance Lease Payables 2.5 2.9 5.7

Financial Instruments (7.2) (3.7) (10.0)

Carried Forward Losses to be Utilised against Future Taxable Income - - (8.9)

Other 2.0 (3.1) 0.2

(9.6) (7.6) (17.8)
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10. Deferred Tax  (continued)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax 
balances (after offset) for Statement of Financial Position purposes:

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

Property, Plant and Equipment – Revaluation 941.9 941.9 941.9

Property, Plant and Equipment – Accelerated Depreciation 430.1 422.8 434.1

Term Payables (1.8) 2.2 (0.4)

Financial Instruments (20.2) (8.4) (19.6)

Other (6.7) (3.9) (6.3)

Deferred Tax Liability 1,343.3 1,354.6 1,349.7

Carried Forward Losses to be Utilised Against Future Taxable Income (19.8) (11.5) (20.3)

Other (0.1) (0.1) (0.1)

Deferred Tax Asset (19.9) (11.6) (20.4)

1,323.4 1,343.0 1,329.3

Carried forward losses relate to Australian operations and will be utilised against future taxable income from retail and generation activities.

11. Borrowings

ORIGINAL
CURRENCY

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

Borrowings – Current

Unsecured Borrowings NZD 133.7 11.3 133.4

Unsecured Borrowings USD - 50.9 - 

Total Current Borrowings 133.7 62.2 133.4

Borrowings – Non Current

Unsecured Borrowings NZD 278.6 412.8 283.2

Unsecured Borrowings AUD 178.3 254.3 306.1

Unsecured Borrowings USD 596.3 396.8 369.8

Total Non Current Borrowings 1,053.2 1,063.9 959.1

Total Borrowings 1,186.9 1,126.1 1,092.5

Meridian has committed bank facilities of $650.7m of which $357.1m were undrawn at 31 December 2014. The expiry of these facilities range from  
January 2017 to April 2026.

Borrowings are carried at amortised cost with the exception of USD borrowings, which are in a designated hedge relationship (and are classified as Level 2  
in the Fair Value Hierarchy). The total carrying value of all borrowings is considered to approximate fair value.
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12. Financial Risk Management

Meridian’s activities expose it to a variety  
of financial risks: liquidity risk, market risk 
(including currency risk, cash flow risk, interest 
rate risk, electricity and other price risk) and 
credit risk. Meridian’s overall risk management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability of 
financial markets and the wholesale electricity 
market and seeks to minimise potential adverse 
effects on the financial performance and 
economic value of the Group. In order to hedge 
certain risk exposures, Meridian uses derivative 
financial instruments such as: foreign exchange 
contracts (FECs) and options; cross currency 
interest rate swaps (CCIRSs); interest rate swaps 
(IRSs) including forward rate agreements and 
interest rate options; electricity contracts for 
differences (CfDs) and options; and financial 
transmission rights (FTRs) and options.

Meridian uses sensitivity analysis to measure  
the amount of risk it is exposed to for: foreign 
exchange risk; interest rate risk; price risk;  
and ageing analysis for credit risk.

Risk management is carried out under policies 
approved by the Board.

Liquidity Risk

Meridian maintains sufficient funding through 
adequate committed funding facilities and the 
ability to close out market positions as part of its 
management of liquidity risk. Due to the dynamic 
nature of the underlying businesses, Group 
Treasury maintains flexibility in funding by 
keeping committed surplus credit lines available 
of at least $200m to ensure it has sufficient 
headroom under normal and abnormal conditions.

Market Risk

Foreign Exchange Risk

Meridian borrows in foreign currencies and  
is exposed to foreign exchange risks, primarily  
in respect of the US and Australian dollars.  
In addition, the Group incurs capital and 
operating expenditure denominated in foreign 
currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign 
exchange risk primarily in respect of US dollars, 
Australian dollars and the Euro. Meridian does 
not enter into FECs for speculative purposes.

In respect of overseas borrowings, the Group’s 
policy is to hedge the foreign currency exposure 
of both interest and principal repayments 
through CCIRSs which swap all foreign currency 
denominated interest and principal repayments 
to payments in the base currency of the 
borrowing entity. The combination of the foreign 
denominated debt and the CCIRSs results in  
a Group exposure to base currency floating 
interest rates and principal repayments.  
The floating interest rate risk is managed as  
part of the interest rate risk as described in  
the following section.

Meridian’s CCIRSs and foreign denominated 
borrowings are in a combination of a fair value 
hedge and cash flow hedge relationships.  
Foreign exchange movements on the borrowings 
and CCIRSs offset each other, therefore there is 
no income statement or equity impact.

In respect of foreign exchange exposures on 
capital and operating expenditures denominated 
in foreign currencies, Meridian hedges the 
foreign exchange risk through a combination  
of FECs and options. Capital projects which  
are approved by the Board are hedged.  
All committed foreign currency exposures of 
greater than $0.1m NZD equivalent are hedged.

The values of foreign currency derivatives are 
sensitive to changes in the forward prices for 
currencies. A 20% increase/decrease in the 
Australian dollar against the forward price of  
the Euro on the Group’s profit and equity on the 

assumption that all other variables are held 
constant, does not impact NPAT or Equity by 
more than $1.0m.A 20% increase / decrease in 
the New Zealand dollar against the forward price 
of the Australian dollar and the Euro on the 
Group’s profit and equity on the assumption that 
all other variables are held constant, does not 
impact NPAT or Equity by more than $0.5m.

Cash Flow and Interest Rate Risk

Meridian’s primary interest rate risk arises from 
long term borrowings which are sourced at both 
fixed interest rates and floating interest rates.  
In addition, as described in the section above, 
the combination of foreign denominated 
borrowings and the CCIRSs result in an exposure 
to floating interest rates in the currency of the 
funding’s ultimate destination. Borrowings in 
floating New Zealand or Australian interest rates 
expose Meridian to risk of changes in cash flow 
and the fair value of the debt issued. Meridian 
does not enter into interest rate swaps for 
speculative purposes.

Interest rate risk is managed on a dynamic basis 
and various scenarios are simulated taking 
consideration of existing and forecast debt 
requirements, existing hedge positions, forecast 
interest rates and in accordance with the Board 
approved policies.

In accordance with the Board policy, Meridian 
manages its exposure to interest rate risk by 
identifying a core level of debt and using IRSs 
that apply minimum and maximum bands of 
interest rate (hedge) cover to fix interest rates.

The majority of Meridian IRSs are not designated 
as hedges for accounting purposes and are 
therefore classified as held for trading.

The table below summarises the impact of 
increases/decreases in the forward price of 
interest, using the benchmark bank bill rate 
(BKBM), as at 31 December, on Meridian’s profit 
and equity on the assumption that all other 
variables are held constant.

Sensitivity Analysis – Interest rates

IMPACT ON AFTER TAX PROFIT IMPACT ON EQUITY

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

New Zealand BKBM -100 bps (26.6) (25.1) (24.0) (26.6) (25.1) (24.0)

+100 bps 24.6 23.4 22.4 24.6 23.4 22.4

Australian BBSY -100 bps (8.1) (8.9) (9.0) (8.1) (8.9) (9.0)

+100 bps 7.7 8.4 8.5 7.7 8.4 8.5
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12. Financial Risk Management  (continued)

Price Risk

Meridian is exposed to movements in the spot 
price of electricity arising through the sale and 
purchase of electricity to and from the market. 
Meridian manages the net exposure to this risk 
by estimating both expected generation and 
electricity purchases required to support sales. 
Based on this net position, Meridian enters into 
derivative contracts to protect against price 
volatility within trading parameters set and 
monitored by the Board. The derivative contracts 
include forward electricity CfDs traded on the 

ASX (Australian Securities Exchange), FTRs under 
the NZX auction process and bi-lateral derivative 
contracts (including options) with other 
electricity generators and major customers. 
Meridian does not enter into derivative contracts 
for speculative purposes.

In addition, as Meridian’s Australian wind farms 
earn Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) – in 
the form of Large-Scale Generation Certificates 
(LGCs), LGC options are used to hedge this 
associated price risk.

The table below summarises the impact of 
increases/(decreases) in changes to certain 
assumptions on Meridian’s profit and equity,  
on the assumption that all other variables are 
held constant and Meridian’s current accounting 
policies are followed as stated. Post tax profit 
and equity would increase/(decrease) as shown 
in the table below due to unrealised gains/losses 
on CfDs.

Sensitivity Analysis – Electricity Price Risk 

IMPACT ON AFTER TAX PROFIT IMPACT ON EQUITY

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

CfDs held for trading

Electricity Prices -10% 134.0 129.9 138.2 134.0 129.9 138.2

10% (129.1) (129.7) (133.9) (129.1) (129.7) (133.9)

Interest Rates -100 bps 1.0 (0.7) 0.7 1.0 (0.7) 0.7

(discount rate) +100 bps (1.0) (1.9) (0.7) (1.0) (1.9) (0.7)

Level 3 CfDs represent all material movements.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is managed on net exposures at Group 
level. Credit risk arises from cash and cash 
equivalents, derivative financial instruments and 
deposits with banks and financial institutions, as 
well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail 
customers, including derivatives which have a 
positive value, outstanding receivables and 
guarantees. For banks and financial institutions, 
only independently rated parties with a minimum 
rating of ‘A’ are accepted and where wholesale 
customers are independently rated, these 
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no 

independent rating, the Credit Management Unit 
assesses the credit quality of the customer, 
taking into account its financial position, past 
experience and other factors. Individual risk 
limits are set based on internal or external 
ratings in accordance with limits set by the 
Board. The utilisation of credit limits and 
provision of prudential security by wholesale 
customers is regularly monitored by line 
management. Credit risk surrounding the sales 
to retail customers is predominantly mitigated 
by the accounts being settled on a monthly 
basis. Retail credit management continually 

monitors the size and nature of the exposure  
and acts to mitigate the risk deemed to be  
over acceptable levels.

The carrying amounts of financial assets  
recognised in the Statement of Financial  
Position best represents Meridian’s maximum  
likely exposure to credit risk at the date of this 
report. Meridian does not have any significant 
concentrations of credit risk with any one  
financial institution.
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13. Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

NZ IFRS 13 provides for a three-level fair value 
hierarchy that requires inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value to be 
categorised as follows:

·	 Level 1 Inputs - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the entity can access at the measurement 
date. Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) 
level 1 inputs are utilised to measure Electricity 
related CfD’s

·	 Level 2 Inputs - Either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable 

inputs other than quoted prices included in 
Level 1. Interest Rate Swaps, Cross Currency 
Interest Rate Swaps and Foreign Exchange 
Contracts have level 2 inputs and are 
measured using discounted cash flow 
valuation technique

·	 Level 3 Inputs - Inputs for the asset or liability 
that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). See table below for 
further details

Where the fair value of a financial instrument is 
calculated as the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows of the instrument (discounted 

cash flows), three key types of inputs are used  
by the valuation technique. These are:

·	 forward price curves referenced to the ASX for 
electricity, published market interest rates and 
published forward foreign exchange rates; and 

·	 discount rates based on forward interest swap 
curve adjusted for counterparty risk

·	 all contracts are assumed to run for the full 
duration of the contract and for the term stated

The following table gives information about how 
the fair values of financial assets and financial 
liabilities are determined (in particular, the 
valuation technique(s) and input(s) used).

FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

FAIR VALUE  
HIERARCHY

VALUATION TECHNIQUE(S)  
AND KEY INPUT(S)

SIGNIFICANT  
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS

RELATIONSHIP OF 
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS 
TO FAIR VALUE

Electricity related CfDs Level 3 Valuation technique: Discounted cash flows.  
Future cash flows have been calculated with  
reference to:

Price 
Where quoted prices are not available or not  
relevant (i.e. for long dated and large volume  
contracts such as the NZAS CfD), Meridian’s  
best estimate of long-term forward wholesale  
electricity price is used. Meridian’s best estimate  
is based on a fundamental analysis of expected  
demand and the cost of new supply

Estimate of forward 
wholesale electricity  
price ranging from  
$55 per MWh to  
$98 per MWh  
(in real terms) 
– excludes observable  
ASX pricing

For a buy contract, 
the higher the forward 
wholesale electricity 
price, the lower the 
fair value loss or the 
higher the gain, and 
for a sell contract,  
the higher the fair 
value loss or lower  
the fair value gain

Forecast CPI
An internal forecast of expected inflation rates

2.25% The higher the 
forecast rate,  
the lower the gain/
loss on a contract

Other factors
London Metal Exchange (LME) quoted prices  
of primary aluminium 

Calibration factor
Factor applied to forward price curve as  
a consequence of initial recognition differences 

 

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, 
the Group uses market-observable data to the 
extent it is available. Where observable inputs 
are not available, the Group engages third  
party experts to support the establishment  
of appropriate valuation techniques and inputs 
to valuation models.

There have been no transfers between levels  
in respect of these assets and liabilities.

The Audit and Risk Committee of the Company 
determines the overall appropriateness of  
key valuation techniques and inputs for fair  
value measurement.

The Chief Financial Officer, in his report  
to the Board, includes explanation of fair  
value movements.
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13. Financial Instruments  (continued)

The table below shows the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value by the Group:

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL  
INSTRUMENTS LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

Assets:

Held for Trading

Electricity Related CfDs 4.4 (0.2) 110.1 114.3 5.0 (0.1) 72.9 77.8 6.5 (0.1) 66.7 73.1

Interest Rate Swaps - 6.3 - 6.3 - 10.0 - 10.0 - 5.3 - 5.3

Cash Flow Hedges

Foreign Exchange Contracts - 0.6 - 0.6 - 12.0 - 12.0 - 2.9 - 2.9

Cross Currency  
Interest Rate Swaps - 2.6 - 2.6 - - - - - 1.4 - 1.4

Fair Value Hedges

Cross Currency  
Interest Rate Swaps - 26.0 - 26.0 - 1.8 - 1.8 - - - -

Total 4.4 35.3 110.1 149.8 5.0 23.7 72.9 101.6 6.5 9.5 66.7 82.7

Current 26.6 33.6 19.5

Non Current 123.2 68.0 63.2

Liabilities:

Held for Trading

Electricity Related CfDs 7.4 - 53.5 60.9 8.6 0.1 38.4 47.1 10.2 0.1 39.9 50.2

Interest Rate Swaps - 83.8 - 83.8 - 49.5 - 49.5 - 57.4 - 57.4

Foreign Exchange Contracts - 0.3 - 0.3 - - - - - - - -

Cash Flow Hedges

Foreign Exchange Contracts - 0.1 - 0.1 - 2.9 - 2.9 - 3.2 - 3.2

Cross Currency  
Interest Rate Swaps - 0.2 - 0.2 - 0.9 - 0.9 - 3.0 - 3.0

Fair Value Hedges

Cross Currency  
Interest Rate Swaps - 12.5 - 12.5 - 31.7 - 31.7 - 49.3 - 49.3

Total 7.4 96.9 53.5 157.8 8.6 85.1 38.4 132.1 10.2 113.0 39.9 163.1

Current 24.7 43.9 37.9

Non Current 133.1 88.2 125.2

Held for Sale Financial Assets:

Listed Securities - - - - 5.9 - - 5.9 3.7 - - 3.7

Total - - - - 5.9 - - 5.9 3.7 - - 3.7

The fair value element of borrowings which are subject to fair value hedge accounting are a level 2 valuation.
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13. Financial Instruments  (continued)

The table below shows the changes in the fair value of the financial instruments recognised in the Income Statement.

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED 

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED  

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED 

30 JUN 2014
$M

Fair Value Hedge

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps (68.8) (26.3) (8.5)

Borrowings – Fair Value of Hedged Risk 68.8 25.7 8.0

- (0.6) (0.5)

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swaps (25.8) 40.1 27.5

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain/(Loss) – Financing (25.8) 39.5 27.0

Held for Trading

Foreign Exchange Contracts (0.2) (0.2) (0.1)

CfDs 0.6 1.8 (8.2)

Other (0.1) 0.1 (0.1)

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain/(Loss) - Operational 0.3 1.7 (8.4)

Total Net Change in Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments (25.5) 41.2 18.6

Included in the above is $(4.3)m (31 December 2013: $10.6m, 30 June 2014: $5.8m) related to Level 3 financial instruments held at the end of the reporting period.

The table below shows a reconciliation of fair value movements in Level 3 financial instruments.

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED 

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED
6 MONTHS ENDED  

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED
12 MONTHS ENDED 

30 JUN 2014
$M

Energy Derivatives (CfDs)

Opening Balance 26.8 20.1 20.1

Total gains/(losses) recognised in the Income Statement

Included in Energy Sales Revenue (44.4) 33.3 (44.3)

Net Change in Fair Value of CfDs 0.5 10.5 2.8

Total gains/(losses) recognised in the FX Translation Reserve - (0.1) (0.2)

CfDs settled during the year 44.4 (33.3) 44.3

CfDs entered into during the year 29.3 4.0 4.1

Closing Balance 56.6 34.5 26.8

Refer to previous Electricity price risk sensitivity analysis (in Note 12 - Financial Risk Management) for sensitivity to changes in valuation assumptions  
of Level 3 financial instruments (CfDs).

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

The effective portion of changes in the fair values 
of treasury derivatives (FECs, IRSs and CCIRSs) 
that are designated and qualify as cash flow 
hedges are recognised in the cash flow hedge 
reserve. The movement in the cash flow hedge 
reserve net of tax for the six months ended  
31 December 2014 is ($0.1m), (31 December 2013: 
($2.0m), 30 June 2014: ($10.3m)).

New Zealand Aluminium Smelters  
CfD Agreement

On 7 August 2013, Meridian and New Zealand 
Aluminium Smelters (NZAS) entered into an 
electricity price agreement.

This agreement is for a period of up to 18 years 
and is based on 400 to 572MW of continuous 
consumption at the Tiwai smelter, thereby 
providing NZAS price certainty for this 
consumption volume which NZAS purchases 
from the New Zealand wholesale market.  
The agreed energy price is subject to escalation 
with reference to the Consumers Price Index  
(All Groups) and world aluminium prices.

Meridian considers that the agreement will best 
ensure that the electricity price NZAS pays will 
remain competitive for the scale of electricity 
consumption at the Tiwai smelter, while 
recognising both the commodity-price driven 
cycles of NZAS’s business environment and  
the wholesale electricity price cycles to which 
Meridian is exposed.

The agreement has been accounted for at fair value 
as required by NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement. Fair value changes 
subsequent to initial recognition are recognised  
in the Income Statement and have been measured 
using the fair value guidelines under NZ IFRS 13  
Fair Value Measurement.
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13. Financial Instruments  (continued)

Initial Recognition Difference

An initial recognition difference arises when the 
modelled value of an electricity derivative differs 
from the transaction price (which is the best 

evidence of fair value). This difference can be 
accounted for by recalibrating the valuation 
model by a fixed percentage to result in a value 
at inception equal to the transaction price.  
This recalibration adjustment is then applied  

to future valuations over the life of the contract. 
Alternatively, as was done previously with  
the difference on the 2007 NZAS contract,  
it can be amortised over the life of the contract.

The table below shows the aggregate initial recognition difference yet to be recognised in the Income Statement over the term of the contract:

UNAUDITED 
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2014
$M

UNAUDITED 
6 MONTHS ENDED

31 DEC 2013
$M

AUDITED 
12 MONTHS ENDED

30 JUN 2014
$M

Opening Difference 911.5 186.0 186.0

Initial Difference on New Hedges

NZAS Agreement - 853.2 853.2

Electricity Related CfDs 14.5 3.0 (0.2)

Volumes Expired and differences amortised during the Period

NZAS Agreement (28.2) (134.1) (151.8)

Electricity Related CfDs (1.9) (2.0) (6.8)

Recalibration of Model for Future Price Estimates and Time

NZAS Agreement 77.9 (28.7) 31.3

Electricity Related CfDs (2.3) (3.1) (0.2)

Closing Difference 971.5 874.3 911.5

14. Commitments

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2014

$M

UNAUDITED
31 DEC 2013

$M

AUDITED
30 JUN 2014

$M

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Property, Plant and Equipment 14.6 201.0 29.9

Software 0.8 1.5 3.6

15.4 202.5 33.5

Guarantees

Meridian Energy Limited has provided a bank 
guarantee (A$37.9m) to the financiers of the 
Macarthur wind farm, guaranteeing that it will 
comply with its various obligations under the 
Refinancing Coordination Deed (with that 
guarantee expected to be released within the 
2015 financial year).

Meridian Energy Limited has provided parent 
guarantees for various construction and grid 
connection obligations of Mt Mercer Wind Farm 
Pty Limited. The maximum liability under these 
guarantees is $186.9m (31 December 2013: 
$211.6m, 30 June 2014: $192.6m).

Meridian Energy Limited signed a Parent 
Company Guarantee (PCG) on 30 April 2014  

for the benefit of CalRENEW-1 Holdings LLC 
(holding company of SunEdison Inc). The PCG 
related to Meridian Energy USA Inc’s (MEUSA) 
sale of CalRENEW-1 LLC pursuant to a Unit 
Purchase Agreement (UPA). Under the PCG, the 
Parent guarantees MEUSA’s obligations in the 
UPA, which include historic payment obligations 
and some representations and warranties.  
The PCG stands for three years.
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15. Subsequent Events

Dividends

Other than the dividend declared on 17 February 
2015 (refer to Note 7), there have been no other 
material events subsequent to 31 December 2014.

16. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent Assets

Meridian has been disputing the Inland Revenue 
Department’s (IRD) tax treatment relating to  
the depreciation of powerhouse structures.  
The IRD has issued a draft provisional 
determination for hydro electric powerhouses 
allowing depreciation deductions. Should this 
draft be finalised in its current state, it will 
reverse a deferred tax liability and will result  
in an income statement change of $34.4m.  
There were no other contingent assets at  
31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: nil,  
30 June 2014: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities at  
31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: nil,  
30 June 2014: nil).
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Review Report 

To the Shareholders of Meridian Energy Limited

We have reviewed the condensed 
consolidated interim financial statements of 
Meridian Energy Limited and its subsidiaries 
(“the Group”) which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 31 December 
2014, and the income statement, statement 
of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the six months ended on that date, 
and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information 
on pages 10 to 31. 

This report is made solely to the company’s 
shareholders, as a body. Our review has 
been undertaken so that we might state to 
the company’s shareholders those matters 
we are required to state to them in a review 
report and for no other purpose. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone 
other than the company’s shareholders as  
a body, for our engagement, for this report, 
or for the opinions we have formed. 

Board of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board of Directors are responsible for 
the preparation and fair presentation of the 
condensed consolidated interim financial 
statements, in accordance with NZ IAS 34 
Interim Financial Reporting and IAS 34 
Interim Financial Reporting and for such 
internal control as the Board of Directors 
determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation and fair presentation of the 
condensed consolidated interim financial 
statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible 
for the publication of the condensed 
consolidated interim financial statements, 
whether in printed or electronic form. 

Independent Reviewer’s 
Responsibilities

The Auditor-General is the auditor of the 
Group pursuant to section 5(1)(f) of the 
Public Audit Act 2001. Pursuant to section  
32 of the Public Audit Act 2001, the Auditor-
General has appointed Michael Wilkes of 
Deloitte to carry out the annual audit of  
the Group.

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion 
on the condensed consolidated interim 
financial statements based on our review. 
We conducted our review in accordance with 
NZ SRE 2410 Review of Financial Statements 
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the 
Entity (NZ SRE 2410). NZ SRE 2410 requires 
us to conclude whether anything has come 
to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the condensed consolidated interim 
financial statements, taken as a whole, are 
not prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with NZ IAS 34 Interim Financial 
Reporting and IAS 34 Interim Financial 
Reporting. As the auditor of Meridian Energy 
Limited, NZ SRE 2410 requires that we comply 
with the ethical requirements relevant to the 
audit of the annual financial statements. 

A review of the condensed consolidated 
interim financial statements in accordance 
with NZ SRE 2410 is a limited assurance 
engagement. The auditor performs 
procedures, primarily consisting of making 
enquiries, primarily of persons responsible 
for financial and accounting matters, 
and applying analytical and other review 
procedures. The procedures performed  
in a review are substantially less than  
those performed in an audit conducted  
in accordance with International Standards 
on Auditing (New Zealand). Accordingly  
we do not express an audit opinion on  
the condensed consolidated interim  
financial statements. 

We did not evaluate the security and controls 
over the electronic publication of the condensed 
consolidated interim financial statements. 

In addition to this review and the audit of the 
Group annual financial statements, we have 
carried out other engagements consisting 
of a carbon emissions audit, audit of the 
securities registers and reporting in our 
capacity as auditors to the supervisor for 
the debt securities which are compatible 
with the independence requirements of 
the Auditor-General, which incorporate the 
independence requirements of the External 
Reporting Board. In addition, principals 
and employees of our firm deal with the 
Group on arm’s length terms within the 
ordinary course of trading activities of the 
Group. These services have not impaired our 
independence as auditor of the Company 
or Group. Other than these engagements 
and arm’s length transactions, and in our 
capacity as auditor acting on behalf of the 
Auditor-General, we have no relationship 
with, or interests in, the Company or Group.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come  
to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the condensed consolidated interim 
financial statements do not present fairly,  
in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the 
six months ended on that date in accordance 
with NZ IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 
and IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

Michael Wilkes
Deloitte
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Christchurch, New Zealand

17 February 2015 
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APPENDIX 7 – NZSX Listing Rules

Number of pages including this one
(Please provide any other relevant

NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.2. For rights, NZSX Listing Rules 7.10.9 and 7.10.10.  details on additional pages)
For change to allotment, NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.1, a separate advice is required.

Full name
of Issuer

Name of officer authorised to Authority for event,
make this notice e.g. Directors' resolution

Contact phone Contact fax
number number Date

Nature of event Bonus If ticked, Rights Issue
Tick as appropriate Issue state whether: Taxable / Non Taxable Conversion Interest Renouncable

Rights Issue Capital Call Dividend If ticked, state Full
non-renouncable change �� whether: Interim Year Special �� DRP Applies

EXISTING securities affected by this If more than one security is affected by the event, use a separate form.

Description of the ISIN
class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX

Details of securities issued pursuant to this event If more than one class of security is to be issued, use a separate form for each class.

Description of the ISIN
class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX

Number of Securities to Minimum Ratio, e.g
be issued following event Entitlement   1   for    2   for

Conversion, Maturity, Call Treatment of Fractions
Payable or Exercise Date

Tick if provide an
pari passu OR explanation

Strike price per security for any issue in lieu or date of the
Strike Price available. ranking

Monies Associated with Event Dividend payable, Call payable, Exercise price, Conversion price, Redemption price, Application money.

Source of
Amount per security Payment
(does not include any excluded income)

Excluded income per security
(only applicable to listed PIEs)

Supplementary Amount per security
Currency dividend in dollars and cents

details -
NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.7

Total monies

Taxation Amount per Security in Dollars and cents to six decimal places

In the case of a taxable bonus Resident Imputation Credits
issue state strike price Withholding Tax (Give details)

Foreign FDP Credits
Withholding Tax (Give details)

Timing (Refer Appendix 8 in the NZSX Listing Rules)

Record Date 5pm Application Date
For calculation of entitlements - Also, Call Payable, Dividend /

Interest Payable, Exercise Date,
Conversion Date. In the case
of applications this must be the
last business day of the week.

Notice Date Allotment Date
Entitlement letters, call notices, For the issue of new securities.
conversion notices mailed Must be within 5 business days

of application closing date.

OFFICE USE ONLY
Ex Date:
Commence Quoting Rights: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Rights 5pm:
Commence Quoting New Securities: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Old Security 5pm:

31 March, 2015 15 April, 2015

$35,882,000 Date Payable 15 April, 2015

$ $0.0010 $0.0054

In dollars and cents

Retained Earnings
$0.0140

NZ Dollars $0.0025

Enter N/A if not 
applicable

+64 4 381 1200 17 2 2015

Instalment Receipts NZMELE0001S9

EMAIL: announce@nzx.com

Notice of event affecting securities
1

Meridian Energy Limited

Jason Stein Directors' resolution



APPENDIX 7 – NZSX Listing Rules

Number of pages including this one
(Please provide any other relevant

NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.2. For rights, NZSX Listing Rules 7.10.9 and 7.10.10.  details on additional pages)
For change to allotment, NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.1, a separate advice is required.

Full name
of Issuer

Name of officer authorised to Authority for event,
make this notice e.g. Directors' resolution

Contact phone Contact fax
number number Date

Nature of event Bonus If ticked, Rights Issue
Tick as appropriate Issue state whether: Taxable / Non Taxable Conversion Interest Renouncable

Rights Issue Capital Call Dividend If ticked, state Full
non-renouncable change �� whether: Interim � Year Special DRP Applies

EXISTING securities affected by this If more than one security is affected by the event, use a separate form.

Description of the ISIN
class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX

Details of securities issued pursuant to this event If more than one class of security is to be issued, use a separate form for each class.

Description of the ISIN
class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX

Number of Securities to Minimum Ratio, e.g
be issued following event Entitlement   1   for    2   for

Conversion, Maturity, Call Treatment of Fractions
Payable or Exercise Date

Tick if provide an
pari passu OR explanation

Strike price per security for any issue in lieu or date of the
Strike Price available. ranking

Monies Associated with Event Dividend payable, Call payable, Exercise price, Conversion price, Redemption price, Application money.

Source of
Amount per security Payment
(does not include any excluded income)

Excluded income per security
(only applicable to listed PIEs)

Supplementary Amount per security
Currency dividend in dollars and cents

details -
NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.7

Total monies

Taxation Amount per Security in Dollars and cents to six decimal places

In the case of a taxable bonus Resident Imputation Credits
issue state strike price Withholding Tax (Give details)

Foreign FDP Credits
Withholding Tax (Give details)

Timing (Refer Appendix 8 in the NZSX Listing Rules)

Record Date 5pm Application Date
For calculation of entitlements - Also, Call Payable, Dividend /

Interest Payable, Exercise Date,
Conversion Date. In the case
of applications this must be the
last business day of the week.

Notice Date Allotment Date
Entitlement letters, call notices, For the issue of new securities.
conversion notices mailed Must be within 5 business days

of application closing date.

OFFICE USE ONLY
Ex Date:
Commence Quoting Rights: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Rights 5pm:
Commence Quoting New Securities: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Old Security 5pm:

31 March, 2015 15 April, 2015

$ $0.0033 $0.0187

NZ Dollars $0.0085

$123,024,000 Date Payable 15 April, 2015

Enter N/A if not 
applicable

NZMELE0001S9

In dollars and cents

Retained Earnings
$0.0480

+64 4 381 1200 17 2 2015

Instalment Receipts

EMAIL: announce@nzx.com

Notice of event affecting securities
1

Meridian Energy Limited

Jason Stein Directors' resolution
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Disclaimer 

2 

The information in this presentation was prepared by Meridian Energy with due care and attention. However, the 
information is supplied in summary form and is therefore not necessarily complete, and no representation is made as to the 
accuracy, completeness or reliability of the information. In addition, neither the company nor any of its directors, 
employees, shareholders nor any other person shall have liability whatsoever to any person for any loss (including, without 
limitation, arising from any fault or negligence) arising from this presentation or any information supplied in connection 
with it.  

 This presentation may contain forward-looking statements and projections. These reflect Meridian’s current expectations, 
based on what it thinks are reasonable assumptions. Meridian gives no warranty or representation as to its future financial 
performance or any future matter. Except as required by law or NZX or ASX listing rules, Meridian is not obliged to update 
this presentation after its release, even if things change materially. 

 This presentation does not constitute financial advice. Further, this presentation is not and should not be construed as an 
offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy Meridian Energy securities and may not be relied upon in connection with any 
purchase of Meridian Energy securities. 

 This presentation contains a number of non-GAAP financial measures, including Energy Margin, EBITDAF, Underlying NPAT 
and gearing. Because they are not defined by GAAP or IFRS, Meridian's calculation of these measures may differ from 
similarly titled measures presented by other companies and they should not be considered in isolation from, or construed 
as an alternative to, other financial measures determined in accordance with GAAP. Although Meridian believes they 
provide useful information in measuring the financial performance and condition of Meridian's business, readers are 
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these non-GAAP financial measures. 

The information contained in this presentation should be considered in conjunction with the condensed interim financial 
statements, which are included in Meridian’s interim report for the six months ended 31 December 2014 and is available at: 

 http://www.meridianenergy.co.nz/investors/reports-and-presentations/interim-results-and-reports/ 

All currency amounts are in New Zealand dollars unless stated otherwise. 
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Key financial points 

  Interim financials well ahead of last year 

  Operating cash flow +13.2% 

  EBITDAF +20.9% 

  Underlying NPAT +38.3% 

 Capital projects completed 

 Mt Mercer and Mill Creek wind farms 

 Generation control system 

  Total generation volumes +6.1% 

  271GWh of new wind production 

 Higher winter inflows this year 

 HVDC constraints last year 

3 
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Key market points 

 Modest demand growth in 2014, up 
1.3% 

 Retail competition remains fierce 

 Aluminium prices and currency rates 
are assessed as having a positive 
impact on the Tiwai Point smelter 

  Slow progress on major regulatory 
decisions 

4 

2,600 

2,800 

3,000 

3,200 

3,400 

3,600 

3,800 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

GWh 
NATIONAL DEMAND 

Range (2009-2013) 2011 2012 2013 2014 



MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED RESULTS PRESENTATION FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014   18 February 2015 

Capital management 

5 

  Lift in dividend policy to 75%-90% of 
free cash flow (from 70%-80%) 

  In addition, targeting a progressive 
return of a further $625m over next 5 
years, starting in August 2015 

 Mechanism for this additional return 
will be considered on an ongoing basis 

 Ordinary interim dividend of 4.8 cps, 
fully imputed 

  Special interim dividend of 1.4 cps, 
fully imputed 
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Regulatory issues 

6 

  The Electricity Authority is expected to 
publish a transmission pricing options 
paper in the next few weeks 

  A second issues paper is due in June 
2015 

  Currently the proposed changes will 
mean lower transmission charges to 
consumers and downward pressure on 
retail prices 

  Uncertainty about the Renewable Energy 
Target (RET) in Australia has paralysed 
investment in renewable generation 

  Unclear when a stable, bipartisan energy 
policy that supports renewables may 
return 

 Meridian’s focus in Australia is on 
successfully rolling out a new retail 
experience 
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Projects 

7 

 Major projects completed on time and 
under budget 

 Mt Mercer will eliminate half a 
million tonnes of carbon emissions 
annually 

 Mill Creek completion means that 
Wellington wind can now power 
100,000 homes 

 New generation control system 
monitors 50,000 data points 
around our assets 

 Other projects progressing inside the 
stay in business capital envelope 

 Waitaki refurbishment 

 Manapouri transformer replacement 
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Powershop Australia 

8 

 Over 30,000 customers in Victoria at 
the end of January 2015 

  Leverages existing NZ technology and 
call centre investment 

  Business run out of Melbourne and 
Wellington 

 Customers serviced out of Masterton 

 Anticipating NSW launch this quarter 
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New Zealand retail 

9 

 Arc metering business sold and 
programme commenced to replace 
remaining 125,000 legacy meters 

 New Meridian website launched, 
improved customer join, move and bill 
estimate functionality 

 

 Aggressive residential competition has 
seen a small decline in customer 
connections 

 More successful targeted retention 
activity: 2.4% improvement in 
Meridian’s rolling retention rate since 
June 2014 
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New Zealand retail 

10 

 Annual demand up 1.3%, last 6 months 
up 2.9% on prior period 

 Reduced fuel purchase obligations mean 
that thermal generators are able to 
reduce output 

  The forward market has risen across all 
quarters, which may benefit commercial 
and industrial pricing 

 No network-wide energy price increases 
in April this year 

 Meridian’s residential pricing is close to 
the lowest in most major networks 
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  Better than prior year performance on all major financial measures 

  1H FY14 included $8.3m of IPO costs, not repeated in 1H 14 

  1H FY15 EBITDAF includes $5.2m of insurance proceeds  

  1H FY15 NPAT includes $15.2m of gains on asset sales – metering business and farms 

Financial performance 
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Earnings 

  ‘Like for like’ EBITDAF (excluding 
insurance proceeds and IPO costs) 
increase of 15.4% in 1H FY14 from: 

  Additional generation from Mill Creek 
in NZ and Mt Mercer in Australia 

  Higher residential/SME sales volumes 

  Higher sell-side CFD volumes and 
lower acquired generation, off the 
back of higher NZ generation 

  Continued cost savings and lower 
HVDC charges 

  Higher interest costs on connection 
asset finance leases and end of project 
interest capitalisation 

12 

1Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, changes in fair value of 
financial instruments, impairments and gain/(loss) on sale of assets 
2Net Profit after Tax adjusted for the effects of non cash fair value movements and other 
one-off items 
A reconciliation between Net Profit after Tax  and Underlying Net Profit after Tax is on p31 
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Operating cash flow and investment expenditure 

 Net cash flow from operating activities 
was $25.3m (13.2%) higher than 1H FY14 

  Reflects the higher energy margin and 
lower operating costs in 1H FY15 

  Includes higher income tax payments on 
improved EBITDAF 

  Investment expenditure was $62.4m 
(36.9%) lower than 1H FY14 

  Reflects completion of Mill Creek and Mt 
Mercer wind projects 

  Both projects were completed under 
budget 

  Stay in business capital expenditure of 
$23.9m in 1H FY15 
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Costs 

  $6.1m (9.1%) decrease in Transmission 
costs in 1H FY15 

  Benefiting from lower final costs on HVDC 
Pole 3 project  

  5% increase in 2015/16 transmission 
costs coming 

  $12.6m (10.1%) decrease in reported 
Operating costs in 1H FY15 

  Adjusting for IPO costs, Operating costs 
have decreased $4.3m (3.7%) in 1H FY15 

  Absorbing costs from growth projects – 
new wind farms and Powershop Australia 
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Concluding remarks 

15 

  Higher energy margin and lower costs has 
driven a lift in profits and operating cash 
flow 

  Inflows into catchments have been 
consistent, with Lake Pukaki storage (as at 
17 Feb) 93% of average. Position is not 
adversely affecting generation outlook 

  Tiwai Point decision 

  Amended dividend policy the first step in a 
capital management programme, with 
further update in August 2015 

  Final instalment receipt payment of 
$NZ0.50 per share due in May 2015, more 
details at:  

www.treasury.govt.nz/statesector/soes/
meridianenergyinstalmentreceipts 
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Additional information 
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New Zealand retail 

Customer connections 

  Small decline in ICP numbers since June 
2014, reflecting aggressive residential 
sales activity 

Residential, SME, Agri segment 

  6.2% increase in volumes largely from 
growth in SME and agribusiness 
customer base 

  Average price is stable 

Corporate segment 

  4.2% decrease in average price, 
reflecting corporate and industrial 
customers rolling off fixed term 
contracts 

  Increasing ASX prices may feed through 
into C&I pricing 
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Hydrology 

  Inflows for the 6 months to December 
2014 were 106% of historical average 

  This reflects comparatively high 
inflows in July and August 2014 

  January 2015 inflows were 77% of 
historical average 

 Meridian’s Waitaki catchment storage 
at 31 December 2014 was 91% of 
historical average 

  By 31 January 2015, this storage 
position was 83% of historical average 
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New Zealand generation 

  For the 6 months to December 2014, 
Meridian’s New Zealand generation 
was 3.8% higher than the same period 
last year 

  For the 6 months to December 2014, 
the average price Meredian received 
for its generation was 61.7% higher 
than the same period last year 

  Similarly, the price Meridian paid to 
supply contracted sales in the 6 
months to December 2014 was 60.4% 
higher than last year 
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Dividends 
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2015 DIVIDENDS 
DATE 

ANNOUNCED DATE PAID 
AMOUNT 

CPS 
IMPUTATION 

% 

Interim Ordinary Dividend 18 February 2015 15 April 2015 4.80 100% 

Interim Special Dividend 18 February 2015 15 April 2015 1.40 100% 

Total Interim Dividend 6.20 100% 
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324.3 

268.2 

+18.9 

-3.9 
+7.3 -0.4 -1.9 +13.6 

+3.8 
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New Zealand Energy Margin 
+$20.0m 

*Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, changes in fair value of financial instruments, impairments and gain/(loss) on sale of assets 
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EBITDAF and Net Profit After Tax 
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*Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, changes in fair value of financial instruments, impairments and gain/(loss) on sale of assets 
**Net Profit after Tax adjusted for the effects of non cash fair value movements and other one-off items 
A reconciliation between Net Profit after Tax and Underlying Net Profit after Tax is on p30 
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New Zealand energy margin 
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  Energy margin is a non-GAAP financial measure 
representing Energy Sales Revenue less Energy 
Related Expenses and Energy Distribution Expenses 

  Energy margin is used to measure the vertically 
integrated performance of the retail and wholesale 
businesses.  This measure is used in place of statutory 
reporting which requires gross sales and costs to be 
reported separately, therefore not accounting for the 
variability of the wholesale spot market and the 
broadly offsetting impact of wholesale prices on the 
cost of retail electricity purchases 

  Energy margin is defined as: 
₊  revenues received from sales to customers net of 

distribution costs (fees to distribution network 
companies that cover the costs of distribution of 
electricity to customers), sales to large industrial 
customers and fixed price revenues from 
derivatives sold (Contract sales revenue) 

±  the net position of virtual assets swaps with 
Genesis Energy and Mighty River Power 

⁻  the cost of fixed cost of derivatives acquired to 
supplement generation and spot price risks, net 
of spot revenue received for generation acquired 
from those derivatives (Net cost of acquired 
generation) 

±  revenue from the volume of electricity that 
Meridian generates that is in excess of volumes 
required to cover contracted customer sales 
(Spot exposed revenues) 

±  other associated market revenues and costs 
including Electricity Authority levies and ancillary 
generation revenues (i.e. frequency keeping) 
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New Zealand energy margin 
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HY2014 HY2013 

NEW ZEALAND ENERGY MARGIN 
VOLUME 

GWh 
VWAP 

$/MWh 
 

$M 
VOLUME 

GWh 
VWAP 

$/MWh 
 

$M 

Retail Contracted Sales 2,993.4 $101.9 $305.0 2,885.7 $102.9 $296.9 

NZAS Aluminium Sales 2,525.4 2,525.4 

Sell Side CFDs 606.1 434.4 

Wholesale Contracted Sales 3,131.5 $50.6 $158.4 2,959.8 $49.9 $147.6 

Net VAS Position 578.81 $6.2 553.61 $10.2 

Acquired Generation Revenue 530.3 $50.5 $26.8 665.0 $45.3 $30.1 

Cost of Acquired Generation 530.3 -$83.7 -$44.4 665.0 -$82.7 -$55.0 

Net Cost of Acquired Generation -$17.6 -$24.9 

Generation Revenue 6,897.6 $64.2 $442.9 6,644.5 $39.7 $263.8 

Cost to Supply Contracted Sales 6,302.3 -$69.1 -$435.2 5,940.4 -$43.1 -$255.7 

Net Spot Exposed Revenue $7.7 $8.1 

Other Market Revenue/(Costs) -$4.8 -$3.0 

Energy Margin $454.9 $434.9 

LWAP:GWAP2 1.11 1.10 

1Notional VAS volumes 
2Ratio between the price per unit received for Meridian’s physical generation and the price paid to supply each unit of contracted sales, inclusive of line losses 
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Contracted Sales 
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Funding 

  Total borrowings as at 31 December 2014 
of $1,186.9m, up $60.8m from 31 
December 2013 and up $94.4m from 30 
June 2014 

 Net borrowings (net of cash) as at 31 
December 2014 of $955.9m, up $82.2m 
from 31 December 2013  

  Committed bank facilities of $650.7m as 
at 31 December 2014, of which $357.1m 
were undrawn 

 Net finance costs increased by $3.3m 
(8.8%) in HY15, reflecting finance lease 
interest on transmission costs assets and 
the end of capitalisation of interest on 
build projects 
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Funding metrics 

 Net debt/EBITDAF is the principal metric 
underpinning S&P credit rating 

  S&P calculation of Net debt/EBITDAF 
includes numerous adjustments to 
reported numbers 

  Borrowings are adjusted for the impact 
of finance and operating leases 

  Cash balances are adjusted for 
restricted cash 

  EBITDAF is adjusted for operating 
leases and non core revenue 
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Fair Value movements 

  Meridian uses derivative instruments to 
manage commodity price, interest rate and 
foreign exchange risk 

  As forward prices and rates on these 
instruments move, non cash changes to 
their carrying values are reflected in NPAT 

  Accounting standards only allow hedge 
accounting if specific conditions are met, 
which creates NPAT volatility 

  Net changes in the fair value of derivatives 
was an unrealised loss of $25.5m in HY15 

  This is driven by changes in the value of 
interest rate hedges from a drop in the 
forward interest rate curve 

  This compares to an unrealised gain of 
$41.2m in HY14 and $18.6m in FY14 
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Group income statement 
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6 MONTHS ENDED 31 DEC YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 

SUMMARY GROUP INCOME STATEMENT 
2014 

$M 
2013 

$M 
2014 

$M 
2013 

$M 

New Zealand Energy Margin 454.9 434.9 891.5 865.1 

International Energy Margin 25.3 11.7 31.9 50.7 

Other Revenue 16.5 12.7 27.3 29.7 

Energy Transmission Costs (60.6) (66.7) (129.3) (115.3) 

Employee and Other Operating Costs (111.8) (124.4) (236.1) (245.4) 

EBITDAF 324.3 268.2 585.3 584.8 

Impairment of Assets (0.5) - - (24.8) 

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets 15.2 (2.4) 6.6 106.6 

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures (0.6) (0.2) (0.4) 0.1 

Depreciation and Amortisation of Intangible Assets (116.5) (105.3) (220.0) (219.7) 

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Operational) 0.3 1.7 (8.4) 51.1 

Net Finance Costs (40.8) (37.5) (73.7) (113.5) 

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Financing) (25.8) 39.5 27.0 42.7 

Net Profit before Tax 155.6 164.0 316.4 427.3 

Income Tax Expense (38.5) (47.1) (86.6) (132.2) 

Net Profit after Tax 117.1 116.9 229.8 295.1 
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Group underlying NPAT 
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6 MONTHS ENDED 31 DEC YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 

UNDERLYING NPAT RECONCILIATION 
2014 

$M 
2013 

$M 
2014 

$M 
2013 

$M 

Net Profit after Tax 117.1 116.9 229.8 295.1 

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Operational) (0.3) (1.7) 8.4 (51.1) 

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Financing) 25.8 (39.5) (27.0) (42.7) 

Premiums paid on Electricity Options (less Interest) (8.3) (8.3) (20.1) (18.5) 

Impairment of Assets 0.5 - - 24.8 

Gain on Sale of Assets (15.2) 2.4 (6.6) (106.6) 

Adjustments before Tax 2.5 (47.1) (45.3) (194.1) 

Income Tax Expense (4.8) 13.2 10.1 61.7 

Underlying Net Profit after Tax 114.8 83.0 194.6 162.7 
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6 MONTHS ENDED 31 DEC YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 

SUMMARY GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
2014 

$M 
2013 

$M 
2014 

$M 
2013 

$M 

Receipts from Customers 1.002.4 963.5 2,083.4 2,390.0 

Interest and Dividends Received 4.6 4.2 8.5 2.1 

Payments to Suppliers and Employees (685.9) (677.9) (1,480.5) (1,811.8) 

Interest and Income Tax Paid (104.3) (98.3) (178.6) (163.6) 

Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities 216.8 191.5 432.8 416.7 

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 15.4 4.7 41.1 0.6 

Finance Lease Receiveable/Payable (0.4) 0.2 (0.3) - 

Sale of Subsidiaries and Investments 24.0 2.1 21.1 152.0 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (101.2) (151.7) (283.7) (244.8) 

Capitalised Interest (0.4) (3.6) (9.3) (5.7) 

Purchase of Intangible Assets and Investments (4.5) (13.6) (22.3) (26.2) 

Net Cash Outflows from Investing Activities (67.1) (161.9) (253.4) (124.1) 

Proceeds from Borrowings 203.7 80.4 133.7 1,115.9 

Dividends Paid (228.6) (152.6) (261.4) (99.8) 

Shares Purchased for Long Term Incentive (1.0) (1.0) (1.0) - 

Term Borrowings Paid (168.9) (85.3) (153.5) (1,117.4) 

Net Cash Outflows from Financing Activities (194.8) (158.5) (282.2) (101.3) 

Group cash flow statement 
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6 MONTHS ENDED 31 DEC YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 

SUMMARY GROUP BALANCE SHEET 
2014 

$M 
2013 

$M 
2014 

$M 
2013 

$M 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 231.0 252.4 276.4 382.8 

Accounts Receiveable 217.1 180.7 182.7 254.5 

Other Current Assets 58.7 95.2 63.5 128.8 

Current Assets 506.8 528.3 522.6 766.1 

Intangible Assets 45.7 55.5 54.0 54.8 

Property, Plant and Equipment 6,852.9 6,809.3 6,929.0 6,769.0 

Other Non-Current Assets 143.6 80.1 84.2 147.5 

Non-Current Assets 7,042.2 6,944.9 7,067.2 6,971.3 

Payables and Accruals 232.7 176.8 235.6 274.8 

Current Portion of Term Borrowings 133.7 62.2 133.4 146.7 

Other  67.0 92.4 96.9 99.0 

Current Liabilities 433.4 331.4 465.9 520.5 

Deferred Tax Liability 1,343.3 1,354.6 1,349.7 1,364.2 

Term Borrowings 1,053.2 1,063.9 959.1 1,033.5 

Other 201.6 88.2 181.4 131.2 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,598.1 2,506.7 2,490.2 2,528.9 

Net Assets 4,517.5 4,635.1 4,633.7 4,688.0 

Group balance sheet 
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Acquired generation volumes buy-side electricity derivatives excluding the buy-side of virtual asset swaps 

Average generation price the volume weighted average price received for Meridian’s physical generation 

Average retail contracted sales price volume weighted average electricity price received from retail customers, less distribution costs 

Average wholesale contracted sales price volume weighted average electricity price received from wholesale customers, including NZAS 

Combined catchment inflows combined water inflows into Meridian’s Waitaki and Manapouri hydro storage lakes 

Cost of acquired generation volume weighted average price Meridian pays for derivatives acquired to supplement generation 

Cost to supply contracted sales volume weighted average price Meridian pays to supply contracted customer sales 

Contracts for Difference (CFDs) an agreement between parties to pay the difference between the wholesale electricity price and an agreed fixed price for a 
specified volume of electricity. CFDs do not result in the physical supply of electricity 

Customer connections   installation control points, excluding vacants 

GWh gigawatt hour. Enough electricity for 125 average New Zealand households for one year 

Historic average inflows the historic average combined water inflows into Meridian’s Waitaki and Manapouri hydro storage lakes over the last 81 years 

Historic average storage the historic average level of storage in Meridian’s Waitaki catchment since 1979 

HVDC high voltage direct current link between the North and South Islands of New Zealand 

ICP installation control points, excluding vacants 

ICP switching the number of installation control points changing retailer supplier in New Zealand, recorded in the month the switch was 
initiated 

MWh megawatt hour. Enough electricity for one average New Zealand household for 46 days 

NZAS New Zealand Aluminium Smelters Limited 

National demand Transpower’s Daily Demand reporting, adjusted for embedded generation from Meridian’s Te Uku, White Hill and Mill Creek 
wind farms 

Retail sales volumes contract sales volumes to retail customers, including both non half hourly and half hourly metered customers 

Sell side derivatives sell-side electricity derivatives excluding the sell-side of virtual asset swaps 

Virtual Asset Swaps (VAS) CFDs Meridian has with Genesis Energy and Mightly River Power. They do not result in the physical supply of electricity 

Glossary 

34 



  

PG 1 

Meridian delivers higher earnings  

18 February, 2015 

Meridian Energy delivered a solid interim result for the six months to 31 December 2014, with higher earnings compared 

to the same period last year.  

Meridian was ahead of the same period last year on all financial measures with Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) of $117.1m, 

while Underlying NPAT (which excludes the effects of non-cash fair value movements, gains on sale of assets, 

impairments and other one off items) was $114.8m. 

Performance against last year 

Meridian Chief Executive Mark Binns said that it was gratifying that earnings were up against the previous period on all 

measures.  

Compared with the same period last year, earnings before interest and taxation, depreciation and amortisation and fair 

value adjustments (EBITDAF) was up 20.9% and underlying NPAT was up 38.3%. The result was due to an increase in 

generation volumes and wholesale prices, improved retail sales volume in irrigation and business sales and a decrease 

in operating costs.  

“It was especially pleasing to note that total electricity demand in the period had shown a 1.3% lift on the previous 

corresponding period following a period of flat or declining demand,” said Mr Binns. 

Dividends and Capital Management  

Meridian will pay an interim dividend of 4.8 cents per share which is 4% higher than the dividend forecast in the 

Prospectus. 

In addition, Meridian will pay a special dividend of 1.4 cents per share. This will utilise imputation credits that would 

otherwise be lost upon the final payment on the instalment receipts and the subsequent transfer of shares from the 

Crown to shareholders, in May this year. 

Both dividends will be imputed to 100% and paid on 15 April 2015. 

As indicated in August last year, the Board has reviewed the company’s capital structure given its conservative gearing 

ratios and the limited likely requirement for capital to fund substantial growth in the foreseeable future.   



 

PG 2 

The initial step is an immediate amendment to the dividend policy to increase the percentage of free cash flow paid out 

on average from 70%-80% to 75%-90%. All other elements of the dividend policy remain unchanged. 

In addition, Meridian intends to return $625m to shareholders over the next five years.  The Board will remain flexible as 

to how this is achieved but the anticipated form of return will be either an annual on-market share buyback programme, 

special dividends, or a combination of both. 

The capital return will follow the final instalment receipt process and will be subject to the owners of the Tiwai Point 

smelter not terminating the electricity agreement, or there not being any adverse event in the interim. 

Details of the initial capital return programme for FY16 will be announced in August at the FY15 results announcement. 

Outlook 

While significant parts of the country are experiencing drought conditions, the southern lakes which feed Meridian’s 

power stations are receiving regular inflows from small weather systems. As at yesterday, storage in Lake Pukaki, the 

principle storage lake for Meridian, is 93% of average. It is not anticipated that continuing dry conditions will affect the 

year end result. However, the outlook could change depending on how long the current situation continues.  

In Australia, Meridian’s Powershop retail brand, which now has over 30,000 customers in Victoria, will enter the NSW 

market in the first quarter this year. 

 

 

 

For media queries, please contact: 

Paul Clearwater  

External Communications 

027 282 0016   

 

For Investor Relations queries, please contact: 

Owen Hackston 

Investor Relations Manager 

021 246 4772 

 



Our interim results for the six months ended 31 December 2014 
are now available and show a lift in profits and operating cash 
flow, which supports an enhanced dividend. 

Dear Investor

Better energy

1.4CPS
Additional special dividend

13.2%
Growth in operating cash flow

38.3%
Growth in underlying  
net profit after tax

3.8%
Higher NZ generation

4.8CPS
Interim ordinary dividend

3.7%
Higher retail sales volumes

Payment of the  

final instalment 

receipt

If you hold Meridian 

instalment receipts on  

4 May 2015, you will  

be liable to pay the final 

instalment receipt of 

NZ$0.50 per share

Payment must be made 

between 6-15 May 2015

More information can be  

downloaded here

1

http://www.treasury.govt.nz/statesector/soes/meridianenergyinstalmentreceipts


From our  
Chair  
and Chief 
Executive

2

Total generation for the six months 
was up by over 6% on the previous 
corresponding period, ref lecting 
strong first quarter hydro generation in 
New Zealand and the contribution made 
by the completed Mt Mercer (Victoria) 
and Mill Creek (Wellington) wind farms. 
This, together with strong irrigation 
demand and favourable business sales 
compared with last year, saw Meridian’s 
total Energy Margin increase by 7. 5% .

A t i g ht rei n was kept on operat i n g costs 
a nd t hese were dow n 10. 1% on t he sa me 
per iod last yea r.

T h is a l l f lowed t h rou g h to st ron g 
operat i n g cash f lows t hat were 1 3 . 2% 
a head of la st yea r a nd E BI T DA F t hat 
was 20.9% a head .

We a re pleased to a n nou nce a d iv idend 
of 4 . 8 cents per sha re, wh ich is i n 
excess of t he forecast prov ided i n t he 
prospect u s . I n add it ion , t he Boa rd has 
ta ken t he oppor t u n it y to decla re a 
specia l d iv idend of 1 .4 cents per sha re. 
Bot h t hese d iv idend s w i l l be i mputed  
to 10 0% .

We are pleased that the instalment 
receipts have continued to perform well, 
with an increase of 76% from listing 
through to 31 December 2014 . In the 2014 
calendar year the company was first on 
the NZX 50 in terms of total shareholder 
return (which includes dividends). 

I n sta l ment receipt holders w i l l be  
awa re of t he second i n sta l ment  
(50 cents) bei n g due for pay ment 
on or before 1 5 May t h is yea r. T h is is 
a pay ment to t he Crow n . However 
Mer id ia n is work i n g w it h t he Crow n 
to i mplement a sea m less process 
to ma na ge t hese cha n ges . Holders 
shou ld ex pect to receive i n it ia l 
com mu n icat ion s i n ea rly Apr i l 201 5 .

In August last year we announced that the 
Board would review the capital structure 
of the company, given its conservative 
gearing ratios. Over the period Meridian 
has continued to perform well financially, 
the risk of wholesale change to the 
electricity market structure has receded 
and there are limited attractive growth 
opportunities that would require 
significant capital in the foreseeable 
future. In these circumstances, the 
Board believes it is appropriate to 
signal an intention to return capital to 
shareholders, provided the Tiwai Point 
smelter owners do not terminate their 
electricity agreement. The first step 
the Board has taken is to amend the 
company’s dividend policy by increasing 
the percentage of free cash f low paid out 
(as defined in the policy) on average from 
70%-80% to 75%-90% . A ll other elements 

of the dividend policy remain unchanged. 
Furthermore, the Board intends to return 
an additional $62 5m to shareholders over 
the next five years.

T he Boa rd w i l l rema i n f lex ible as to  
how capita l is ret u r ned but at t h is poi nt 
it is env isa ged t hat t h is w i l l be by eit her 
a n a n nua l on-ma rket sha re buyback 
prog ra m me, specia l d iv idend s , or a 
combi nat ion of bot h .

The Board intends to advise 
shareholders of t he prog ra m me for 
t he 2016 f i na ncia l yea r at t he f u l l yea r 
resu lts a n nou ncement i n Au g u st . At 
t hat poi nt t he decision of New Zea la nd 
A lu m i n iu m Smelters ( NZ A S) rega rd i n g 
t he T iwa i Poi nt elect r icit y a g reement 
w i l l be k now n , a nd clea rly, i f t he 
decision is to ter m i nate, or t here  
has been a mater ia l adverse cha n ge  
to t he compa ny’s f i na ncia l posit ion ,  
t he Boa rd w i l l rev isit its decision to 
proceed w it h a l l or pa r t of t he pla n ned 
capita l d ist r ibut ion .

T he M i l l Creek a nd Mt Mercer w i nd 
fa r m projects were closed out du r i n g 
t he last si x mont h s . I n a g g regate t hey 
were del ivered w it h exempla r y hea lt h 
a nd sa fet y per for ma nce a nd 4% u nder 
t hei r or i g i na l bud gets . 

I n l i ne w it h ou r stated a i m of i mprov i n g 
t he core bu si ness , Mer id ia n’s meter i n g 
bu si ness was sold i n D ecember 2014 
to a subsid ia r y of Vector L i m ited a nd 
com m it ments were entered i nto to 
replace a l l ou r New Zea la nd cu stomers’ 
legacy meters . 

W h i le Au st ra l ia prov ides cha l len ges i n 
t he generat ion space, we cont i nued t he 
pu sh i nto t he Victor ia n reta i l ma rket 
w it h t he Powershop bra nd . Cu stomer 
nu mbers a re now over 30,000 a nd 
we w i l l sta r t operat ion s i n New Sout h 
Wa les com menci n g i n t he f i rst qua r ter 
of t h is yea r.

T he lau nch of ou r new website i n 
D ecember 2014 ref lects ou r st rateg y to 
move cu stomer en ga gement on l i ne to 
i mprove ser v ice, reduce overa l l cost 
a nd to cont i nue ou r posit ion as a leader 
i n su sta i nabi l it y. 

I n t he i nter i m repor t last yea r we noted 
t hat it was u n l i kely t here wou ld be 
a ny net work-w ide i ncreases i n t he 
energ y component of ou r New Zea la nd 
cu stomers' bi l ls before at least Ju ne  
t h is yea r. T h is w i l l prove cor rect .  
We cont i nue to rev iew ou r pr ici n g .

One issue that arose during the period 
was a problem with the coolers on 
some of the Manapōuri power station 
transformers, which led to the decision 
to replace two transformers and procure 

Meridian continued to perform 
well, with the New Zealand market 
showing some small signs of  
overall growth. All key measures  
of financial performance were 
ahead of the same period last year.

CHRIS MOLLER, CHAIR
MARK BINNS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE



Waitaki – powering on 
T he Wa ita k i hyd ro power stat ion is 
st i l l goi n g st ron g 80 yea rs a f ter it 
f i rst sta r ted produci n g elect r icit y 
− a nd t ha n k s to a $ 40 m i l l ion 
ref u rbish ment prog ra m me, it w i l l 
cont i nue to power New Zea la nd for 
generat ion s to come. 

Set on t he border of C a nterbu r y 
a nd Ota go, t he Wa ita k i da m has 
stood t he test of t i me, wh ich is a 
t r ibute to t hose who desi g ned a nd 
bu i lt t he power stat ion w it h pick , 
shovel a nd wheelba r row back i n 
t he 1930s . 

Now about ha l f way t h rou g h 
t he fou r-yea r prog ra m me, t he 
ref u rbish ment project has t h ree 
major goa ls: to ref u rbish pla nt 
a nd i n f rast r uct u re i n order to 
reduce ma i ntena nce costs a nd 
i mprove per for ma nce, to upg rade 
cr it ica l sa fet y system s to moder n 
sta nda rd s a nd last ly to i mplement 
i mprovements t hat w i l l l i m it  
t he i nter r upt ion to Mer id ia n  
a nd ou r cu stomers i n case of  
a major ea r t hqua ke. 

T he equ ipment has rema i ned 
stead fast over 80 yea rs of u se, w it h 
t he t wo or i g i na l 1 5M W generators , 
wh ich were enou g h to meet a l most 
ha l f of t he Sout h I sla nd’s elect r icit y 
dema nd back i n t he 1930s , st i l l 
operat i n g at t he or i g i na l out put . 
T hese t wo generators , G1 a nd 
G2 , were clea ned , t i g htened a nd 
reba la nced , a nd a re now operat i n g 
more smoot h ly t ha n ever.

‘G enerator 3 ’,  or G3 , wh ich was one 
of t he f ive add it iona l generators 
i n sta l led bet ween 1940 a nd 19 5 4 , 
is u ndergoi n g a major ref it a nd 
repa i r a f ter sei z i n g up i n 1998 . T h is 
is not a n easy task con sider i n g its 
rotor wei g h s nea rly 1 20 ton nes a nd 
t he t u rbi ne wei g h s i n at a rou nd 
3 8 ton nes . Once recom m issioned , 
G3 w i l l br i n g t he tota l stat ion 
capacit y back up to its rated 10 5M W 
or enou g h elect r icit y for about 
60,000 avera ge homes . 

Ot her i mpor ta nt work s have 
i ncluded ma k i n g su re t hat t he 
powerhou se, where a l l generators 
a re located , is stable enou g h to 
w it h sta nd a major ea r t hqua ke. 
Usi n g 3-D model l i n g , we were able 
to see how t he powerhou se’s wa l ls 
a nd roof wou ld per for m u nder t he 
massive st ress of a n ea r t hqua ke. 
Rat her t ha n ju st st ren g t hen i n g  
t he powerhou se’s wa l ls , we took  
a more i n novat ive approach .  
T he outer wa l l w i l l have t he abi l it y 
to f lex i ndependent ly of t he roof, 
avoid i n g t he possibi l it y of t he  
roof col lapsi n g . 

A f ter 80 yea rs of wea r a nd tea r 
f rom t he con sta nt f low of water, 
erosion work is a lso bei n g ca r r ied 
out , bot h dow n st rea m of t he power 
stat ion below t he sw itchya rd a nd 
on t he jet t y t hat prot r udes out of 
t he powerhou se. 

A not her i mpor ta nt piece of work 
has i nvolved replaci n g t he old 
ca rbon d iox ide f i re system w it h 
a new, sa fer system . T he new f i re 
system is a major i mprovement for 
hea lt h a nd sa fet y as it is desi g ned 
to suppress a f i re wh i le a lso 
prov id i n g breat hable ox ygen .

A n important design feature  
of the dam is the function of its 
under- dam drainage systems.  
A multimillion dollar upgrade is 
underway to enhance the extent  
of this drainage and ensure that  
the pumping systems and dam 
galleries remain serviceable and 
accessible following a large seismic 
event. This work will ensure that the 
time taken to reinstate electricity 
production from Waitaki dam 
following a significant earthquake 
will be as short as possible.

T he Wa ita k i power stat ion is a 
t r ibute to t he sk i l ls a nd energ y of 
ou r forbea rs a nd w it h t he ef for ts 
of ou r cu r rent tea m , t he stat ion 
w i l l cont i nue to power on for ma ny 
yea rs to come. 
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a third as a spare. The replacement 
programme is well underway. The first 
transformer, which was delivered 
immediately before Christmas, was 
made operational on 12 January. The 
second transformer is expected to be 
installed in early March 2015, which will 
restore the station to full capacity.

T he E lect r icit y Aut hor it y’s ( E A's) 
t ra n sm ission pr ici n g rev iew is on t rack 
a nd we look for wa rd to t he publ icat ion 
of t he E A’s f i na l issues paper on t h is 
topic m id-201 5 .

The other regulatory issue we are 
closely monitoring is the Australian 
Government ’s review of the Renewable 
Energy Target (R ET). The R ET is mired 
in politics and the political parties 
involved have been unable to reach any 
compromise that might deliver some 
degree of certainty for participants in the 
Australian renewable energy industry. 

A s prev iou sly adv ised , t he T iwa i Poi nt 
smelter ow ners have t he opt ion to g ive 
Mer id ia n not ice of t hei r i ntent ion to 
ter m i nate t he elect r icit y a g reement on  
1 Ju ly t h is yea r, i n wh ich case t he 
cu r rent supply a g reements wou ld cease 
on 31 D ecember 2016 . On ba la nce, we 
rema i n hopef u l t hat t he smelter w i l l 
cont i nue i n operat ion but t he decision is 
not ou rs . T he rea l it y is t hat u ncer ta i nt y 
a rou nd t he f ut u re of t he smelter is 
somet h i n g t he i ndu st r y ju st has to l ive 
w it h as NZ A S has on goi n g ter m i nat ion 
r i g hts u nder t he cont ract .

As we write, the farming communities 
in both the North and South Islands 
are going through a difficult period as 
a result of drought conditions but our 
storage lakes are still getting reasonably 
regular inf lows from small weather 
systems. So while always watchful, at 
this point we do not see anything in our 
current hydro position that is of concern.

More i n for mat ion on t he compa ny’s 
latest f i na ncia l per for ma nce ca n be 
dow n loaded here.

We thank you for your continued support 
as an investor in Meridian Energy.

http://www.meridianenergy.co.nz/investors/reports-and-presentations/interim-results-and-reports


A powerful 
partnership

W hen it comes to cu stomers l i ke meat 
processi n g compa ny Wi lson Hel laby 
Ltd ( W H L), t hey a re d iscover i n g t hat 
Mer id ia n has a lot more adv ice a nd 
ex per t ise to of fer t hei r bu si ness t ha n 
ju st supply i n g power. 

Br uce F y fe, W H L Group G enera l 
Ma na ger Com mercia l , says t hat he was 
or i g i na l ly of t he bel ief t hat elect r icit y 
was “ t he u lt i mate i n com mod it ies”, 
mea n i n g t hat t he pr ice of power was 
t he sole deter m i na nt beh i nd choosi n g 
a n elect r icit y suppl ier. Si nce becom i n g 
a Mer id ia n cu stomer t wo yea rs a go, he 
has si nce cha n ged t h is v iew. 

W H L u ses t he sa me a mou nt of 
elect r icit y as a rou nd 2 , 300 t y pica l 
New Zea la nd homes per yea r. It u ses 
much of its elect r icit y on cool i n g 
ch i l lers a nd f reezers , most ly du r i n g t he 
day. T he compa ny’s tota l ut i l it y bi l l is 
second on ly to its labou r costs , wh ich 
mea n s t hat a ny adv ice or tools t hat ca n 
help it become more energ y ef f icient 
t he bet ter. 

One of t he key factors t hat has cha n ged 
Br uce’s m i nd is t he va lue t hat Mer id ia n 
has added t h rou g h its approach to 
accou nt ma na gement . “Ou r accou nt 
ma na ger has been proact ive i n work i n g 

4

ou r com m it ments a nd respon sibi l it ies 
as t he la rgest generator of elect r icit y  
i n t he cou nt r y. 

Lon g gone a re t he days when we had 
sta f f on t he g rou nd mon itor i n g a nd 
operat i n g ou r hyd ro da m s a rou nd 
t he clock − t hese days , it is a l l done 
cent ra l ly by one generat ion cont rol ler. 
T he cu r rent system t hat t he cont rol ler 
operates now mon itors some 50,0 00 
data poi nts a rou nd ou r assets such as 
water f low, water levels a nd v ibrat ion  
i n mach i nes . T he cont rol ler a lso work s 
closely w it h ou r energ y t raders who 
of fer generat ion capacit y to t he ma rket 
a nd t he system operator at T ra n spower, 
so t hat Mer id ia n ca n d ispatch energ y 
i nto t he nat iona l g r id for supply i nto 
people’s homes , fa r m s a nd bu si nesses . 

Completed i n Ju ly of t h is yea r, t he  
$19 m i l l ion G C S upg rade g ives Mer id ia n 
a g reater level of sa fet y a nd rel iabi l it y 
when cont rol l i n g ou r assets . 

Keeping  
the lights on 
E n su r i n g t hat we prov ide elect r icit y 
f rom ou r hyd ro da m s a nd w i nd fa r m s 
rel iably a nd sa fely is one of ou r ma i n 
pr ior it ies . We recent ly completed a n 
upg rade of t he system t hat cont rols a l l 
of ou r generat ion assets a rou nd t he 
cou nt r y to ma ke su re t hat we cont i nue 
to do so.

T he G enerat ion Cont rol System (G C S) 
is a cr it ica l piece of i n for mat ion 
tech nolog y i n f rast r uct u re as it mon itors 
a nd cont rols a l l of ou r hyd ro a nd w i nd 
generat ion assets (except Te Āpit i w i nd 
fa r m) a nd la ke a nd ca na l cont rol gates 
f rom a cent ra l hub. T he system work s 
a rou nd t he clock to ma ke su re we reach 

T he t h ree -yea r project was del ivered on 
t i me a nd on bud get wh i le meet i n g a l l of 
its per for ma nce a nd test i n g object ives . 
Mer id ia n was on ly t he t h i rd compa ny  
i n t he world at t he t i me to get t h is 
system upg rade. 

“ It ’s a testa ment to t he ha rd work , 
ded icat ion a nd except iona l tea m work 
by people at Mer id ia n a nd ou r vendor 
pa r t ners t hat we del ivered such a h i g h 
qua l it y resu lt . It was a lso i mpressive 
t hat we ach ieved such a compl icated 
project on t i me, on cost a nd on scope 
w it h zero i mpact to ou r generat ion 
a nd cu stomers .” says Mer id ia n G enera l 
Ma na ger of Ma rkets a nd P roduct ion , 
Nea l Ba rclay.

T he project tea m con sisted of Siemen s , 
wh ich suppl ied t he sof t wa re, PSC , ou r 
New Zea la nd- based G C S i nteg rator, 
F ujitsu , ou r ICT suppl ier, a nd a nu mber 
of ot her cont ractors a nd con su lta nts . 

w it h u s to add ress oppor t u n it ies to 
i mprove ou r per for ma nce. H is elect r ica l 
en g i neer i n g back g rou nd is ver y u sef u l 
a nd we va lue t he i nput . 

“A s a cu stomer we do not need a n 
accou nt ma na ger t hat wa nts to ta ke 
u s out for lu nch , what we need is a n 
ex per t t hat w i l l help u s save money a nd 
operate more ef fect ively – i n Mer id ia n 
we have fou nd t hat ,” says Br uce. 

T h is approach has cha n ged Br uce’s 
percept ion of pu rchasi n g power. “ I now 
va lue t he accou nt ma na gement role 
a nd t he ‘va lue’ ou r elect r icit y suppl ier 
ca n add to ou r bu si ness t h rou g h t hei r 
k nowled ge a nd ex per t ise i n t he ma rket 
a nd i ndu st r y. T h is is a si g n i f ica nt 
cha n ge for me a nd t he ex per ience 
w it h Mer id ia n was not matched by ou r 
prev iou s suppl iers ,” he says . 

Toget her w it h Mer id ia n , W H L has been 
able to add ress energ y ef f iciency issues 
a nd is now work i n g on a f u l l site energ y 
aud it w it h a l ist of recom mended 
opt ion s to i mprove. T he compa ny 
is a lso look i n g to redevelop its site 
a nd w i l l be work i n g closely w it h 
Mer id ia n when it comes to desi g n i n g 
a new factor y to opt i m ise elect r icit y 
ef f iciency a nd heat recover y.

Click here to download the full Meridian Interim Report for the six months ended 31 December 2014
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